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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

Dear Shareholders:

This year has been a year full of challenges and opportunities for the
medical aesthetic industry in Hong Kong. Against the backdrop of
a complex and volatile global economic environment, Hong Kong’s
medical aesthetic market has demonstrated strong resilience and
vitality with its professional and regulated system. On behalf of
the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | would like to present the
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (“FY2025”") and
our future development strategies.

FY2025 Performance Review

In FY2025, the Group achieved a revenue of HK$403.2 million (For the
year ended 31 March 2024 (“FY2024”): HK$494.3 million), representing
a decrease of 18.4% year-on-year. However, the Group managed to
improve its operational efficiency and effectively controlled its operating
costs thanks to the tireless efforts of the team. Earnings before
interest on bank loans, taxes and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment for FY2025 was HK$58.6 million (FY2024: HK$31.7 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 84.9%. At the same time, the
Group achieved a turnaround with a net profit of HK$10.6 million for
the FY2025 (FY2024: net loss of HK$12.6 million). During the year,
this achievement was made possible by the hard work of our staff, the
support of our partners and the trust and recognition of our customers.

l. Business Performance:

° Medical aesthetics and wellness beauty businesses were
stable with new treatments introduced to meet customer
needs and emerging consumer trends. We have revamped
our loyalty programme to improve customer retention.
It has shown that these initiatives have been effective in
strengthening business performance.

° The skincare retail business suffered a decline in sales
due to the sluggish consumer market, but the Group has
proactively adjusted its strategy and optimized its product
portfolio to enhance its competitiveness.

Il. Financial Position:
° In view of the economic uncertainties, the Group adopted
a prudent operating strategy and succeeded in enhancing
its profitability through flexible sales strategies and detailed
cost control.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

° Cash flow remained healthy and gearing ratios were kept
at low level which resulted in a stable financial structure.

lll. Improvement in Operating Efficiency:

° Through supply chain optimisation and other measures
to improve operating efficiency, the Group’s operating
expenses were reduced by 24.5% year-on-year while most
of the expenses to revenue ratios were decreased.

° Customer satisfaction continued to improve and the
customer bases continued to grow, reflecting our relentless
efforts in service quality and customer experience.

Industry outlook

Looking ahead, the medical aesthetic and wellness beauty market in
Hong Kong is expected to continue to grow at a steady pace, with
rising demand for personalised and high-quality medical aesthetic and
wellness beauty services providing the industry with new room for
growth. However, the shortening of the economic cycle and intensified
competition in the industry will require enterprises to be more resilient
and innovative.

Future Strategies

In FY2025, the Group has achieved significant results in enhancing
its four core strategies, namely “Branding, Customer-Focused,
Professionalism and Management Optimisation”. In the future, we
will continue to adhere to this direction, coupled with high-quality
services and prudent financial strategies, in order to overcome
market challenges while seizing market opportunities for the Group’s
sustainable development.

Branding: Strengthen the market influence, recognition and
competitive advantages of the Group’s brands to enhance
customer loyalty and market share.

° Focus on maintaining the existing customer base while
developing other consumer segments to expand the
customer base and provide momentum for sustainable
growth in the future.

o Enhance brand awareness and loyalty through digital
marketing and precise customer insights.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

Customer-Focused: Existing customers are our key assets, the
cornerstone of the Group’s operation and the engine of future
growth.

° Enhance customer retention through difference strategies
after analyzing customers’ spending pattern.

o Enhance customer experience by designing attractive
campaigns to ensure that customers enjoy excellent
service and to further deepen their sense of identity with
the brand.

Professionalism: Strengthen the Group’s competitive edge
by enhancing the core competencies of our staff, such as
professional skills and knowledge, and service quality.

° Provide continuous training to our staff to further enhance
their professional skills and knowledge.

o Introduce more innovative services to meet consumer
demand for high-end, personalised medical aesthetic
services.

Management Optimization: Enhance efficiency and business
performance by optimising the Group’s management system.

° Further optimise the sales network to enhance the
efficiency of resource allocation and strengthen the
profitability of the Group.

° Further streamline processes and strengthen digital
management system to enhance overall operational
efficiency.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

Corporate Social Responsibilities

As a responsible company, we have always incorporated
environmental, social and governance (ESG) concepts into all aspects
of our operations. Key achievements for the year include:

Environmental: The Group has adopted the “Green Office
Practices”, and consumption of multiple sources has been
reduced as compared to last year as a result of optimization of
our operational process and efficient use of energy.

Il. Social: For the fourth consecutive year, the Group supported the
Cancer Fund’s “Pink Revolution” and actively gave back to the
community.

ll.  Corporate Governance: We have maintained a diversified
composition at the board, management and staff levels, and
have established a multi-channel communication platform to
allow key stakeholders to express their views.

Acknowledgements

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff for their hard work, our partners for their unfailing
support, and our shareholders for their long-term trust. In the future, we
will continue to be innovation-driven and customer-focused, creating
greater value for our shareholders and contributing more to society.

Let us work together to drive the Group to a new levell

LAl Ka Yee Gigi
Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Business Review and Outlook

Industry Overview

This year, driven by growing demand and technological upgrades,
Hong Kong’s medical aesthetics market has developed steadily.
Non-surgical treatments has been dominating the market, and the
gradual rejuvenation of the consumer base are recreating vitality
into the industry. In the future, the market will further emphasize on
professionalism and branding as consumers demand higher safety
and treatment results.

Growing market size: Hong Kong’s medical aesthetic and
wellness beauty market continued to grow in the year, benefiting
from increased consumer demand for medical aesthetic and
wellness beauty services, technological advancement and
product diversification further drive market expansion.

I. Non-surgical services dominate the market: Non-surgical
aesthetic services are more popular due to their less invasive
nature and faster recovery, especially Botox and hyaluronic
acid injections. In addition, skin management services (e.g.
photorejuvenation, picosecond laser, etc.) are also popular.

. Consumers are getting younger: Medical aesthetics and
wellness beauty consumers are getting younger, with the 20—
40 age group becoming the majority. The proportion of male
consumers has also increased. The influence of social media
and social influencers has prompted more young people to try
medical aesthetics.

IV.  Technological innovation and personalised services: Operators
are applying new technologies to medical aesthetics and
wellness beauty consultation and treatment plan formulation to
provide more precise and personalised services.

V. Intensified competition and branding: The increase in the
number of medical aesthetic institutions, especially small and
medium-sized medical aesthetic institutions, has led to fierce
competition in the market. Chain brands have been able to
capture market share through quality services and marketing
strategies, and it is expected that industry consolidation will
accelerate in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
M}-EJE n—_l- nﬂﬂ};z *ﬁ'

Business Review and Outlook (Continued)
Industry Overview (Continued)
VI.  Impact of the economic environment: Despite the uncertainties

in the global economy, the Hong Kong medical aesthetic

market has shown resilience, with stable demand for mid-to-

high-end services.

Business Review

In FY2025, the Group achieved a revenue of HK$403.2 million
(FY2024: HK$494.3 million), representing a decrease of 18.4% year-
on-year. However, the Group managed to improve its operational
efficiency and effectively controlled its operating costs thanks to the

tireless efforts of the team. Earnings before interest on bank loans,
taxes and depreciation of property, plant and equipment for FY2025
was HK$58.6 million (FY2024: HK$31.7 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 84.9%. At the same time, the Group achieved
a turnaround with a net profit of HK$10.6 million for the FY2025
(FY2024: net loss of HK$12.6 million).

1. Business Segments

Medical Aesthetics Business: The Group’s operates three
CosMax+ Medical Aesthetics Centres located in the core
business districts of Hong Kong. It leverages on its prime
location to expand its diversified customer base. We
adhere to medical safety standards and all equipment and
treatments have been clinically evaluated by professional
doctors. At the same time, we are actively introducing
innovative aesthetic treatments and continue to improve
our service portfolio to meet the market needs.

Wellness Beauty Business: VITAE, as the Group’s
wellness beauty brand with the core concept of “creating
a balanced aesthetic experience for the body, mind and
soul”, currently operates two treatment centres in Hong
Kong'’s core business districts. It has built up a stable
and quality clientele. Its unique concept of aesthetically
balanced body and mind has created a competitive
differentiation in the market segment.

10 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

XBERELRRE

TERM® (&)

VI, KERRFE:  BERKBEFENRE
M BEEBBEXATHRELHER

P PRHERFREE -

(%)

e

2025 HLEE - AEBEREEKRA
WEZ=-BZ-TE8BIL (2024 BFE :
MEALTFENE=1TE8ET) #RLKD
18.4% ' (BIEB MBI - AEBERKI)
RE g EBEI B RIEHEE KA - 2025 8
BERERTERFE BEWE - -BERRK
BIEMMBART N \BNTEE T (2024
MREE: = FT—att+&%8r)  RALEE
84.9% A AEEERAE AR 2025
BHREEFFE—TZATEET (20245
KRFEE: BE—T-_a~t881T) -

L EBRR

o BEEXAER ASEET =M
CosMax+ 8§ 2EXE AR L LER
BROBER KXESECLE
DRERERZTIEEE - RME
BEERZ2RE FAEREBERE
BYBBEEBLERRKTGE R
REGS| EAIFNEBEXRIER -
BETERGEAURETESHER

o  HEEEAREB:VITAEEAAEE
BETEEERRE  IHEF L
TErmEERl AZLES B
AEBAEZOHEESEMEERE
L EEEABENEERE -
HEROGLTEEZ2E ST H
DGR ERIRFED -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Business Review and Outlook (Continued)
Business Review (Continued)
I Business Segments (Continued)

Skincare retail business: XOVE, a skincare brand
originated from Swiss scientific research, has physical
shops in three high-end shopping malls in Hong Kong
and at the same time developing its e-commerce
channels and sales platform in the Mainland China.
Despite the recent pressure in the retail market, its core
competitiveness has been validated by its excellent
product quality, which has quickly accumulated a loyal
customer base.

Il. Business performance:

Medical aesthetics and wellness beauty business: During
the reporting period, the medical aesthetics and wellness
beauty businesses remained stable. We continued to
innovate our service matrix and launched a number of
new treatments, which accurately responded to the
emerging consumer needs and the results of our service
upgrade were remarkable.

Skincare retail business: Despite the challenges posed
by the overall pressure in the consumer market, the
Group’s retail sales of skincare products experienced
a periodic adjustment. The Group has implemented a
multi-dimensional strategy by optimising product mix,
upgrading the end-to-end experience to increase the
conversion rate, and deepening the integration of online
and offline channels to lay the foundation for further
recovery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Business Review and Outlook (Continued)
Business Review (Continued)
lll.  Financial position:

In view of the economic uncertainties, the Group adopted
a prudent operating strategy and succeeded in enhancing
its profitability through flexible sales strategies and
detailed cost control.

Cash flow remained healthy and gearing ratios were kept
at low level which resulted in a stable financial structure.

IV. Operational Efficiency Improvement:

Through supply chain optimisation and other measures
to improve operating efficiency, the Group’s operating
expenses were reduced by 24.5% year-on-year while
most of the expenses to revenue ratios were decreased
significantly.

Customer satisfaction continued to improve and
the customer bases continued to grow, reflecting
our relentless efforts in service quality and customer
experience.

Operational Strategy

In FY2025, the Group has achieved significant results in enhancing
its four core strategies, namely “Branding, Customer-Focused,
Professional Power and Management Optimisation”. In the future,

we will continue to adhere to this direction, coupled with high-quality
services and prudent financial strategies, in order to overcome
market challenges while seizing market opportunities for the Group’s

sustainable development.

Branding: Strengthen the market influence, recognition and

competitive advantages of the Group’s brands to enhance
customer loyalty and market share.

Focus on maintaining the existing customer base while
developing other consumer segments to expand the
customer base and provide momentum for sustainable
growth in the future.

Enhance brand awareness and loyalty through digital
marketing and precise customer insights.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Business Review and Outlook (Continued)

Operational Strategy (Continued)

Customer-Focused: Existing customers are our key assets, the
cornerstone of the Group’s operation and the engine of future
growth.

Enhance customer retention through different strategies
after analyzing customers’ spending pattern.

Enhance customer experience by designing attractive
campaigns to ensure that customers enjoy excellent
service and to further deepen their sense of identity with
the brand.

Professionalism: Strengthen the Group’s competitive edge
by enhancing the core competencies of our staff, such as
professional skills and knowledge, and service quality.

Provide continuous training to our staff to further enhance
their professional skills and knowledge.

Introduce more innovative services to meet consumer
demand for high-end, personalised medical aesthetic
services.

Management Optimization: Enhance efficiency and business
performance by optimising the Group’s management system.

Further optimise the sales network to enhance the
efficiency of resource allocation and strengthen the
profitability of the Group.

Further streamline processes and strengthen digital
management system to enhance overall operational
efficiency.

Conclusion

For FY2025, the Group has seized the opportunities while coping
with market challenges and achieved steady growth in performance.
Going forward, we will continue to drive growth through quality
and innovation, enhance brand value and adopt prudent financial
strategies to achieve sustainable growth so as to create greater value

for our shareholders, customers and employees. We are confident

in the long-term prospects of the medical aesthetics and wellness
beauty industry and will continue our efforts to drive the Group to new

level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
and wellness beauty services, which include treatment services,
prescription and dispensing of medical products. In addition, we also
sell skincare products to our clients.

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$403.2 million in
FY2025, representing a decrease of approximately HK$91.1 million or
18.4% as compared to HK$494.3 million in FY2024. During FY2025,
the Group operated 5 treatment centres. With the goodwill and
popularity built up over the years and the consistently high quality of
treatment services, medical aesthetic has shown stable performance.
The Group also operated 3 retail stores in Hong Kong’s first-tier
shopping malls and sold skincare products in the Mainland China
and Hong Kong through various channels, including online platforms.
Skincare retail revenue experienced a temporary adjustment due to
the subdued retail market and consumer sentiment. Although the
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Group’s total revenue declined, it remained generally resilient. HRE BEASEHBRSAMTE  HR
BRI BOA ST -
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ASIBLEE
2025 2024
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FET Bt

T Bt

Treatment services BEIRRTS 350,318 86.9 374,538 75.8
Skincare products EEE M 52,804 13.1 119,641 24.2
Medical consultation services BB RTE 3 0.0 9 0.0
Prescription and dispensing BEEMET ML

of medical products 27 0.0 72 0.0
Total revenue FElh g 403,152 100.0 494,260 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue from treatment services

Revenue from treatment services amounted to approximately
HK$350.3 million in FY2025 and approximately HK$374.5
million in FY2024, representing 86.9% and 75.8% of our total
revenue, respectively. The decrease of approximately HK$24.2
million or 6.5% was primarily due to the relatively subdued
economic conditions and consumer sentiment.

Revenue from sale of skincare products

Skincare products represents series of products include
cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser, eye care products,
ultraviolet (UV) protection products and masks, etc., which
backed up by a team of Swiss skincare experts.

Revenue from sale of skincare products amounted to
approximately HK$52.8 million in FY2025 and approximately
HK$119.6 million in FY2024, representing 13.1% and 24.2% of
our total revenue, respectively. The decrease of approximately
HK$66.8 million or 55.9%, was primarily due to the tightening of
the retail market and consumer sentiment downturn in FY2025.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products

Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend skincare products which are sold at our medical
aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to approximately HK$27,000 in FY2025 and
approximately HK$72,000 in FY2024.

B 1% Bl BE ()
W (4%)

@i

(i)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)

Other income and gain, net

Other income and gain, net amounted to approximately HK$6.4
million in FY2025 and HK$5.8 million in FY2024. The increase of
approximately HK$0.6 million or 10.3% was primarily due to the
increase in interest income in FY2025.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$50.4 million in FY2025 and HK$52.8 million in FY2024. The
decrease of approximately HK$2.4 million or 4.5% was primarily due
to decrease in revenue during FY2025.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by approximately HK$42.2 million or 23.0%,
from approximately HK$183.8 million in FY2024 to approximately
HK$141.6 million in FY2025. The decrease in staff costs was mainly
attributable to the optimization of operational structure and systems
to enhance operational efficiency.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets decreased by approximately HK$13.7 million or 20.2%,
from approximately HK$67.9 million in FY2024 to approximately
HK$54.2 million in FY2025. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the optimization of the Group’s sales network and negotiation of more
favorable lease terms with landlords.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation in relation to property, plant and equipment decreased
by approximately HK$7.4 million or 17.5%, from approximately
HK$42.4 million in FY2024 to approximately HK$35.0 million in
FY2025.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)

Other expenses, net

Set forth below is a breakdown of our other expenses, net during the
FY2025 and FY2024:

B 7% B B8 (4)
HMp X 38
2025 B AR JE K2 2024 B B & R HAth F SO0F
RERAAEH 0T

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000 % change
FExT FET BILE

Credit card commission ERRAE 13,789 14,431 (4.4%)
Advertising and promotion expenses B4 R EEM X 25,915 65,346 (60.3%)
Repair and maintenance fees BERRESE 3,398 4,795 (29.1%)
Professional fees BXER 5,149 9,069 (43.2%)
Charitable donations BERN 379 433 (12.5%)
Consultancy fees B & 18,917 16,533 14.4%
Others ) 32,515 49,019 (83.7%)
100,062 159,626 (87.3%)

Other expenses, net decreased by HK$59.5 million from approximately
HK$159.6 million in FY2024 to HK$100.1 million in FY2025. In FY2024,
the Group incurred higher advertising and promotional expenses to
support brand building and increase brand awareness in the Mainland
China, whereas in FY2025, the Group’s promotional activities in
Mainland China were more prudent and precise, resulting in a decrease
in related expenses. During the year, the Group also optimized its
cost structure and improved operational efficiency through various
measures, resulting in a decrease in other expenses, net.

Finance costs
Finance costs increased by approximately HK$0.2 million from
approximately HK$5.2 million in FY2024 to approximately HK$5.4
million in FY2025.

Income tax

Income tax expense amounted to HK$12.4 million and HK$0.8
million in FY2025 and FY2024, respectively. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in the Group’s profit before tax as
compared to last year and the reversal of certain deferred tax assets
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$10.6 million in FY2025 (FY2024: loss attributable to the owners:
approximately HK$12.6 million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend in FY2025 (FY2024: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Indebtedness
Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a stable financial position with cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$182.3 million as at 31 March
2025 (2024: HK$119.8 million). With our steady cash inflow from
operations, coupled with cash and bank balances, we have adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the working requirements in
the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2025, most of the cash and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United State Dollar and Renminbi.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had approximately HK$5.9 million
outstanding interest-bearing bank borrowings (2024: HK$12.5
million).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2024: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2025, there was no charge on the assets of the
Group except for the time deposits of approximately HK$65.8 million
(2024 approximately HK$62.6 million) pledged for credit card and
bank facilities granted to the Group.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings divided
by total share capital and reserves, was approximately 4.0% as at 31
March 2025 (2024: 9.1%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Indebtedness
(Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong and most
of its transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group
did not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on
its operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during FY2025 and FY2024. The Group will closely monitor
related risk in the future.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk. The Group currently
does not have any specific policies to manage interest rate risk and
has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to mitigate
interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Group during FY2025, nor were there any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the reporting period. Save as disclosed in this report, there
is no plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at the date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has a total of 239 employees
(2024: 324). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our
Group were approximately HK$141.6 million for FY2025 (FY2024:
approximately HK$183.8 million). Remuneration is determined with
reference to various factors such as comparable market salaries and
work performance, time commitment and responsibilities of each
individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house and/or
external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary, year-
end bonuses are offered to employees who performed outstandingly
to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Future Prospects

We recognise that the consumer market is undergoing a structural
transformation and change in spending patterns. Against this
backdrop, the Group will continue to maintain a prudent operating
strategy, fully utilise its core competence and proactively respond to
market changes.

In recent years, we have been actively expanding our revenue stream,
by optimising our sales network and innovating our promotional
strategies, while at the same time exercising stringent cost control.
Through continuous strengthening of working capital management,
the Group has maintained an industry-leading low gearing level,
which, together with abundant liquidity reserves, has enabled us
to maintain strong financial resilience in an economic environment
characterised by high interest rates and slow recovery.

Looking ahead, the local consumer environment is expected to
continue to improve in line with the global monetary policy shift. We
will capitalise on this opportunity by accelerating the introduction
of innovative treatments and product portfolios to enhance brand
influence and market penetration. On the other hand, we will adhere
to our core philosophy of “Fulfilling the pursuit of beauty based on
customer needs”. This philosophy which place customer value as top
priority, is the Group’s core strength in weathering economic cycles
and achieving sustainable growth.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEB2BREFE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (B3I ) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (22
£)), aged 583, is an executive director, chairlady of the Board and
chief executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed as a Director
on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive director and appointed
as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive officer on 19
December 2016. She is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Before founding the Group, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi was active in the film
and television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry.

Mr. HO, Tsz Leung Lincoln ({1 ¥ %), aged 49, joined the Group in
July 2019 as the chief brand officer in which he has been responsible
for formulating and leading the Group’s brand strategies, as well as
overseeing the Group’s marketing and sales operations. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive director on 22 April 2020 and promoted
to chief operation officer effective at May 2020. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ho worked in the role of art/creative director in a number
of advertising firms, namely DDB Worldwide, Leo Burnett etc., whose
clients included a world renowned international fast-food corporation,
personal skincare corporations, an automobile corporation and a
major transport corporation in Hong Kong. He has also contributed in
the film industry that earned him a nomination in The 24th Hong Kong
Film Awards in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BREFE

Mr. Ho spent a decade at Neo Derm Group Ltd, a medical aesthetics
company, from 2006 to 2016 with his last position as marketing
communication director, and then worked in Airport Authority
Hong Kong in 2016 as assistant general manager in the retail and
advertising department. He rejoined Neo Derm Group Ltd from
2017 to 2019 with his last position as digital marketing director. He
had also worked for BTL Hong Kong Limited as regional marketing
director before joining the Group.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Arts in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002, as well as a Diploma in Design Studies
in 1999 from the same university.

Dr. LAM Ping Yan (% 5% &), 73, joined the Group in July 2020 as
an executive director. He had been serving as a public officer for
34 years from 1978 to 2012. He commenced his career as a public
officer when he joined at the then Medical and Health Department
(now known as Department of Health) of Hong Kong in 1978 as a
Medical and Health Officer before being promoted to Senior Medical
and Health Officer in 1984, junior directorate officer (Principal Medical
Officer) of the Department of Health in 1989. He was appointed as
Chief Port Health Officer and Community Physician in 1993, Assistant
Director of Health in 1994, Deputy Director of Health in 1996 and
Director of Health in 2003. During Dr. Lam’s tenure as a public officer,
he had been involved in the prevention and control of severe acute
respiratory syndrome (SARS) and swine flu in Hong Kong as Deputy
Director of Health and Director of Health, respectively, before he
retired from his 34 years tenure as a public officer in 2012.

Dr. Lam played and continues to play an active role in the public
health community. He has been a life member of the Society of
Community Medicine and life associate member of the Hong Kong
AIDS Foundation, since 1990 and 1991, respectively. Between
1995 and 2013, he had served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a
member of the Council of Smoking and Health from 1996 to 2003.
Between 2001 and 2012, he was a member of the Medical Council
of Hong Kong. Between 2003 and June 2012, he served as (i)
Commissioner of Auxiliary Medical Service; (i) Chairman of Chinese
Medicines Board; (i) Chairman of International Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Chinese Materia Medica Standards; (iv) Chairman of
Pharmacy and Poisons Board; (v) Chairman of Radiation Board; (vi)
Member of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong; (vii) Member

22 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

fa] %5 4 72 2006 F Z= 2016 & + F HI (T B 2
BERNGMEEEZXAEBEERLAAE &
BB ATIHEMBE  HBR2016FL5E
BRI EERTERBESIEEIBALRE -
BR2017F Z2019F B A MAMBEEZEE
AEBBRAR BB ASEEIHEBE -
RINAAR S B AL - %75 8 % BTL Hong Kong
Limited ¥& {F [ 15} & S 42 B -

A% R 2002 F IS EBIE T KSR EX
BB - 3 1990 F 7 [F) — BT A B ENIS 2R
HEIOE -

MRBBE 7358 W2020F7 AMALSE
EEERNTES - BR1978F £2012F &)
MNEBM—EEERBKE - FR1978FE MA
ERNEABKEAEE ABEES) UEMT
BE RAGALABENBRELE EER
1984 FEA A RBEERRIBIFEH A
BEEBNVAERATE (BREL) - H#R
1903 F EZEARBIFEFERMLTES
EREA R1OUFEFAFEZBHEER
M1996 F B+ A E £ E&IE K R 20034F
BEARBEBER MBARTLAKEHME -
BELSAERBEZRBREAFEEEZERS
HEBSNBRESHETRESEESE (D) R
FEMBETIE  HER2012FE3M4FHA
EETHIEMT -

MEBETEWBEETARBEREERER
YEF ° B 1990 F 2 1991 FiE Bl Bt & &
EEeRGeERAAELRESERIE
3 o N 1995 F E 2013 F B A K Fa+ - 1%
1996 F 2 2003 F AW /B {# £ B & &
5 - R2001 FE2012F - HABEEKREZE
KB - R2003F £2012F6 A - I A()E
BE B AAE  (\PEAETE (i) BB %
MBREERERZESXRE  (VVERNERS
BEEBRHERE: VESNEERERE : WWEHS
HEEZERZEGKE VIR EBEKE K

S m

o

\



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEB2BREFE

of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board; and (viii) Member of the
Hospital Authority Board. Between 2004 and 2005, Dr. Lam was a
Council member of the Hong Kong College of Community Medicine.
He was Deputy Chairman of Cancer Coordinating Committee from
2006 to June 2012. Between 2008 and June 2012, he was the Vice
Chairman of the Working Group on Diet and Physical Activity and
Steering Committee on Prevention and Control of Non-Communicable
Diseases. He was the Vice Chairman of Working Group on Alcohol
and Health and Working Group on Injuries from 2009 to June 2012.
On various occasions, he had served as a temporary advisor to
the World Health Organization (“WHQO”) on policy and strategy of
development of traditional medicine and control of non-communicable
diseases. He served as Chairman to the 2009/2010 Session of
the Regional Committee Meeting of the Western Pacific Region of
WHO. Between 2010 and 2013, Dr. Lam served as an Adviser of the
Overseas Expert Consulting Committee of the Ministry of Health of
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for Health Care Reform. In
2012, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC. He
was further awarded with the Cross-Strait Contribution Award for
Chinese in Tobacco Control by the Chinese Association on Tobacco
Control in the PRC in 2012. He was the Principal Adviser (International
Collaboration) of the National Administration of Traditional Chinese
Medicine of PRC between 2012 and 2017.

Dr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong, faculty of
Medicine with his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery in
1977. He further obtained his Master of Medicine degree in Public
Health from the National University of Singapore in 1992. He is also
a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and a registered
specialist in community medicine.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (8% [El ), aged 76, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee. Mr.
Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November
1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive
experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr.
Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 1 May 2014 and
was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that bank
from June 2014 to June 2016. He was the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited for 3 years from 2016. Credit
Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third
parties independent of the Company and not connected persons
of the Company. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Working Group
on Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board, and
the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee
of the Maritime and Port Board till March 2018. In May 2015, Mr.
Cheng was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I'Ordre National
du Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) from 1 November 2012 to 26 June 2024
and the independent non-executive director of Sincere Navigation
Corp (¥ B fin # fx 17 & R 2 &) which is listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange with effect from 28 June 2019. He is the Honorary
Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime Museum from 2016 to 2022.
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (2§ & 1), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is the
chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a member of
the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from London School
of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree
in Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years’ of
expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services. Mr.
Cheng currently also acts as an independent non-executive director
of a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, CSI
Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited (Stock Code: 194), Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited
(Stock Code: 3839), Somerley Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8439) and Kidsland International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2122). Mr. Cheng was also an independent non-executive director
of Chong Hing Bank Limited and C.P. Pokphand Co. Limited,
companies formerly listed on the Stock Exchange which were
privatised on 30 September 2021 and 18 January 2022 respectively.
Mr. Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive director of Top
Spring International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3688) with effect
from 30 September 2024 and resigned as an independent non-
executive director of CPMC Holdings Limited which was delisted on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 906) with effect
from 22 April 2025.
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Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z1{£3&), aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is a member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Li has many years
of experience in accounting, finance and investment management.
Mr. Li is the chief financial officer of Crystal International Group Limited
(Stock code: 2232), which is principally engaged in manufacturing of
fashion products since November 2018, while he is responsible for
finance matters for that group. From March 2005 to September 2006,
he worked for Esprit Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main
Board (Stock code: 330) and principally engaged in manufacturing,
retail and wholesale distribution of fashion products, and he served as
a vice president of operational finance and a vice president of finance
in Asia Pacific region, while he was responsible for finance and
operational matters. From October 2006 to September 2010, he was
a vice president of COFCO China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board (Stock code: 606) and principally
engaged in trading on agricultural raw materials, manufacturing and
distributing food products, while he was responsible for finance,
investment and company secretarial matters. Mr. Li was a managing
director and director of the board of COFCO Agricultural Industrial
Investment Fund Management Company Limited, which is principally
engaged in asset management, from September 2010 to October
2011, and he was responsible for managing overall business and
investment matters. Mr. Li was a managing director of Origo Partners
PLC, whose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange and
principal business is private equity investment, from November 2011
to January 2013, and he was responsible for investment matters.
Mr. Li was the chief financial officer of Zhuhai Dahenggin Company
Limited and its affiliate Zhuhai Dahengqin Property Company Limited,
which is principally engaged in primary land development, real estate
development, theme park construction and operation, city operational
management, and asset management in Hengqgin Free Trade Zone,
from August 2013 to October 2018, while he was responsible for
finance, investment and fund management matters.
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Mr. Li is a director of Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles
and Apparel since 2022, a director, executive committee member
and honorary treasurer of the Hong Kong — ASEAN Economic
Cooperation Foundation since 2015, an Honorary President of
the Institute of Certified Management Accountants — Hong Kong
& Macau Branch since 2018, a Chairman of Institute of Public
Accountants — Hong Kong Branch since 2019, a Committee
member, SME committee of ACCA — Hong Kong Branch since
2019, and a General Committee member of the Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies since 2020.

Mr. Li was the chairman of Investor Relations Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010, the
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009, the chairman of Partnership
and Promotion Committee of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association from 2009 to 2010, a member of the Organising
Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010 organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, a committee member of the
PRC committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association in 2011, a committee member of Public Awareness
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts in 2016, and
a board member of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada
— Hong Kong Chapter from 2017 to 2020. Mr. Li was a member of
Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the Macau University of
Science and Technology in 2016.

Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree with distinction in November 1995. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada in November 1996.
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Mr. Li was admitted as a member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants in August 2000, a chartered financial
analyst of the Chartered Financial Analysts Institute in September
2001, a certified general accountant of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada in October 2002, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in October 2004, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2005, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2008,
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
April 2010, a chartered professional accountant of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June
2015, a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association
in December 2015, a fellow of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016, a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute in August 2016, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2018, a fellow
of the Institute of Public Accountants in July 2019, a fellow of the
Institute of Financial Accountants in July 2019, a business and finance
professional of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England
& Wales in December 2019, and a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association in December 2019.

Mr. Li is the independent non-executive director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Constructing Group Limited (Stock code: 8411)
since 18 November 2016. Mr. Li was the independent non-executive
director of China Asia Valley Group Limited (formerly known as China
Graphene Group Limited) (Stock code: 63) from 1 February 2018 to
30 November 2018, the independent non-executive director of China
Greenfresh Group Company Limited (Stock code: 6183) from 20
July 2018 to 5 June 2020, the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1808) from 27
April 2017 to 12 October 2020 and the independent non-executive
director of TL Natural Gas Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8536) from
18 May 2018 to 30 September 2021.

Note: The Group’s business are under the direct responsibility of the above executive
directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix C1 of Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2025,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
of the CG Code for the time being in force, except the deviation
stipulated below.

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady of the
Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive Officer”). As Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi has been leading
the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and a director of
each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of the relevant
major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to continue to have Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is acceptable and
appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Purpose, Values, Strategy and Culture

The core purpose of the Company is to create value for its
shareholders. It strives to become a well renowned enterprise
in the provision of non-surgical medical aesthetic and wellness
beauty services and sale of skincare products and aims to be
the powerhouse of Women’s Love Brands that uplift women to
be the best vision of themselves with our comprehensive range
of customized medical aesthetics and wellness beauty treatment
services, skincare and cosmetic products, and health supplements.
Its mission is to lead the development of the industry and set the
industry benchmarks. In this connection, it endeavours to maintain
accountability to its employees, consumers, shareholders, the
society, and the environment. These purposes and values shape the
Company’s strategy, which are geared towards building a trusted
and beloved enterprise whereby values for shareholders are created.
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Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Having made specific
enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company during FY2025.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. LAM Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has complied
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least 3 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of the INEDs must
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All INEDs also meet the guidelines
for assessment of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the INEDs makes an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of that view that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board
is performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 21 to 28 of this annual report.
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Mechanism on Independent Views to the Board

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Board has established a mechanism is
to enable Directors to seek independent professional advice when
exercising Directors’ duties to ensure a strong independent element
to the decision made by the Board which is key to an effective Board.

According to the mechanism, subject to the prior approval by
the executive director of the Company (which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed), the Directors may seek
independent legal, financial or other professional advice from
advisors independent of those advising the Company as and when
necessary in appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge
their responsibilities effectively, either on the Company’s affairs or in
respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the Company’s expense.
In case of the Board is seeking independent professional advice, prior
approval must be given by the executive director of the Company
(which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

The Board has reviewed this mechanism on an annual basis to
ensure the implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation of
such mechanism and considered that such mechanism are effective.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief
Executive Officer and a director of each of major subsidiaries since the
establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Ms. LAl
Ka Yee Gigi acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for
more effective management and planning of the Group. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code is acceptable and appropriate in the circumstances and
currently does not propose to separate the functions of chairman and
the chief executive officer.

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer
who is responsible for overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of our Group. She is also
a member of remuneration committee and the chairlady of the
Nomination Committee.
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Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance
with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. Four
regular board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2025 and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out on page 33 of this report. At the Board meeting held on
25 June 2025, the Board has approved, among other matters, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda
for meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before signature of the Chairlady. The
minutes are kept by the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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TtEERBE
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
hE/ BITEERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board  Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE ¥FMZEE REZEE i
Ezgex EE = R BEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi Plma L 4/4 - 2/2 11 11
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln AFskk 4/4 - - - 1/1
Dr. LAM Ping Yan MEREBE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV F#TES
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David BHELE 4/4 3/3 - 11 11
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo gHEANLE 4/4 3/3 2/2 1 11
Mr. LI Wai Kwan FTRELE 4/4 3/3 2/2 - 11

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall have
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company received from the Directors the following records
of the training attended during the year ended 31 March 2025.

EEREERER
ARBBEABEESEFETERRNE
—HRBIMRE RS 2 A R B BRI
SHRBTARZEEARIEMENERT
HEESFLEM EFHERARAREM
AT RENREE2025F3A31 R IEFEMS
B ) SR DI RO 8%

Nature of Trainings

EIEE
Type 1 Type 2
158 %28

Executive Directors BTES
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi 229N ifn 2+ v v/
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln Al Fmdk A v/ v
Dr. LAM Ping Yan MEBELE v 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo ERER AN A4 v
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David EPoh B o A4 4
Mr. LI Wai Kwan FRELE 4
Type of trainings: IR
1. Reading materials. 1. BEM R -
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HEEIER &% wmiE/ TIED g -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company
and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s policies,
including board diversity policy, shareholders commmunication policy and
mechanisms to ensure independent views of the Board, and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in the corporate governance report of the Company
required to be prepared pursuant to the Listing Rules; and (f) consider,
review and decide any other topics, as authorised by the Board. During
the year, the Board reviewed and discussed the corporate governance
policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its
corporate governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds
in order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. CHENG
Fu Kwok David, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. LI Wai Kwan and Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 March 2025 and the meeting were attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee
had reviewed with the management and the external auditor the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls, and financial reporting matters
including the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024;

° the review of the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2024;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

° the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 33 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the Rules 3.25 to Rules 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs and responsible to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management (including approving the terms of
executive directors’ service contracts). Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. CHENG Yuk
Wo and Mr. LI Wai Kwan. Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2025 with the presence of all committee members.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration packages
and performance bonuses for the Directors and senior management of
the Company (including increase of remuneration of certain directors
as disclosed in the note 8 to the financial statements) and assessed
performance of executive directors.

The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the
executive directors who are the senior management of the Company.
Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2025 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

The Company has a remuneration policy for Directors. Each of the
Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual adjustment
at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and be
determined at the discretion of the Board. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined, inter alia, by reference to the relevant
Director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time devoted to
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, considering
the reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect of
the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director, namely
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok
David and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo. Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady
of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2025 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and board diversity
policy, discussed matters regarding the retirement and re-election of
Directors and succession planning for Directors and assessment of
the independence of INEDs. The Nomination Committee concluded
that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used
in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc.
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Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board periodically
and make recommendation on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When
it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an additional
director, the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates
as recommended to the committee pursuant to the criteria set out
in the Nomination Policy. Based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment. In addition, every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election at least once every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election at annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee shall review the overall contribution and service to the
Company, expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
Directors, who offered himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting, to determine whether such Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.

The selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this Policy when it identifies suitable and
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the validity
of implementation of the Policy and considered that the Policy are
effective.

The Board comprises 5 male Directors and 1 female Director. As at
31 March 2025, the Company has 239 employees in total comprising
of approximately 218 females and 21 males (a female-to-male ratio of
10.38:1).

The Group when hiring employees considers a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee of the
Company has reviewed annually gender diversity in the Group.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, dividends may be paid
out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant
from time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results
and cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board has
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The interim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a timely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young is
set out as follows:

ZE AN 2
REFEN BN/ BATRAEHAES
Fr B e BT

Services rendered Fee paid/payable
P12 1 BR 7% B BB A
HK$’000

FHETT

Audit services =R 1,600
Non-audit services* FERZER 75~ 200

*Non-audit services included tax advisory and other related services.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results
of the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2025. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis.
The scope of review was previously determined and approved by
the Board. The Adviser has reported to the Audit Committee and
management for findings and areas for improvement, if any. The
Board and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing
Policy”). The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster
a culture of compliance, ethical behavior and good corporate
governance across the Group; and (ii) promote the importance
of ethical behavior and encourages the reporting of misconduct,
unlawful and unethical behavior.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the Audit
Committee. No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material
effect on the Group’s financial statements or overall operations for the
year ended 31 March 2025 has been discovered. The Whistleblowing
Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its
effectiveness.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Board has adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-corruption
Policy”). The Group is committed to achieve the highest standards
of integrity and ethical behaviour in conducting business. The Anti-
corruption Policy forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework. The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the
specific behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel and
business partners must follow to combat corruption. It demonstrates
the Group’s commitment to the practice of ethical business conduct
and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws and regulations that
apply to its local and foreign operations. In line with this commitment
and to ensure transparency in the Group’s practices, the Anti-
corruption Policy has been prepared as a guide to all employees of
the Group and third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically to
align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry
best practice.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information.
With those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over
27 years of experience in the field of company secretarial services.
Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not
an employee of our Group and he is responsible for advising to the
Group on corporate governance matters. The finance director of the
Company, currently Mr. Richard Wong, is the person who Mr. Lo can
contact for the purpose of code provision C.6.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings.
Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

44 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

i NRIHE

RRRBADERBNITRE - BHE R EMF
AMBPBEAEREZ2ERHEE - ARADRANA
FHEBRERE ETHARELBEMAR
HEZEME eI REF - ERFHESI LR
FT AEREERBEREEE  BERAAE
#al - HERREREEAREENARESTS

RERBBEELRKE -

NEME
ARBRIE—FINE IR H R IR 1t 2 A B
ERG UCRERFTLRALETEAAMW
E-BLERBAGHHOLEEE KAF
WERGEHERBTFL R -ELRECHE
RoROBEFE  RERZTLRI5NEH
MEERE - BERLEAFAKEZES
FEERCXEREERNARERMES -
ARPREMBAEERBRLERERLER
ESTRIC.6.1 fR<T RIS AT B B A L »

PR R 55
BEABBREHAGRABEAR L1R2
BRZIEF -

REAQBAMERMAA EZSANER
BB ENEFREEREFARRER ARG - £
—fMHAERE2EREAREETORAR
AFERAN (ARARKRRAG ZRER) +
DZ—HRRNEMRIREEEBRANRDF
EXEYNERHERMER BREFEH
FBRRFHIARE  UREEHEERTEAN
EAEE: EZAREERNEZZEREMQ)
BARET EREEEAE -+ —2)A
N EFeXRBERREABEARGEZER
APE2BRATABITARET A GRS
MEEEBRKALTREZGREBRSHME
ERMECERXERARRIAES ZERA
fEHELR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER®E

The articles of association of the Company provides that no person
other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at
the head office or at the registration office provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be
at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting. The written notice must state
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51 of Listing
Rules. The procedures for shareholder of the Company to propose a
person for election as Director is posted on the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing by post at 18/F, Nan Fung Tower, 88 Connaught
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company shall forward the
Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant
Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond to
the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of interim and annual
results announcements on the latest development of the Company
and press release on the Company’s website and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk
could make the Shareholders appraise the Company’s financial
position. Shareholders are highly required to pay attention to these
public information. Holding of an annual general meeting could
provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to share their views
with the Board. At the annual general meeting held in 2024, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of Directors and voted by way of
poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the Listing Rules. The respective chairman of the
Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had attended the annual general meeting held in 2024 to
ensure effective communication with shareholders. All the Directors
had attended the annual general meeting held in 2024.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy
and was satisfied with the said policy and considered the overall
communication with shareholders was effective with the variety of
communication channels provided above.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.

Constitutional Documents
There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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About this Report

Introduction

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its annual
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (“ESG Report”), demonstrating our continuous
commitment to corporate social responsibility. The Group recognises
the importance of sustainable development. Sustainability is crucial
for the Group’s growth in order to achieve business excellence and
enhance long-term competitiveness. The Group has established and
implemented various policies to manage and monitor our significant
ESG-related risks. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the period from
1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 (“reporting period”). It includes
disclosure of significant environmental and social impacts of our
Group.

Reporting Scope

Our ESG Report mainly covers subsidiaries of the Group in Hong
Kong which are principally engaged in the provision of non-surgical
medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and the sale of
skincare products accounting for approximately 99% of the Group
total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: approximately
91%). The Group will continue to optimise and improve the coverage
of disclosure in this ESG Report.
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About this Report (Continued)

Reporting Basis

This ESG Report was prepared in accordance to the ESG Guide set
out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. The Group has complied
with the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Guide. During the process of preparation of this
ESG Report, we summarized the Group’s performance in corporate
and social responsibilities based on the principles of “Materiality,
Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. Please refer to the table
below for our understanding and response to such reporting

principles.

Reporting Principles
HERA

AR AR & ()

Definitions

BR

ARERE e RERRETIRE LA R
BC2FEHIRE
SEEETRE wehERESIMEITE
SRR A RBERE ERHEANRE
HekErBENBREY RARKIER
B FERk—BEINRA - BT A
SEECRIHEEETENRR - F2H
TRAT BB MIEZERERAAIEE N EFE -

CHERERESIRER - K

Our Response

My E e

Materiality

B2

Quantitative

1

Balance

i

Consistency

—

The issues covered in this ESG Report should
reflect the significant impacts of the Group on
the environment and society, or the scope of
assessments and decisions of stakeholders
being affected.

RIRE HERERAMEMNRENZBAIE
REMAEBEHRERTENERATE 5
BREIZENTERAKGE -

The ESG Report should disclose key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in a
measurable manner.

AR M REARERATEH R
BB R ENE R (RREMIEIR]) -

The ESG Report should reflect fairly the
overall sustainability performance of the
Group.

AR - HEREARERAFRBANE
BHEBARHERRRE

The Group should use consistent disclosure
principles for the preparation of the ESG
Report.

REEEGER - BHNRERIGRIIRE

e RERA®RE -
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Through continuous communication with
stakeholders, combined with the Group’s
strategic development and business
operations, we can identify current material
sustainable development issues.
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The Group quantitatively discloses its
environmental and social KPIs, and
provides textual explanations on quantitative
resources.
AEEEMMBEERERAGHERE
MR - W B ERIBH X FRHRE

The Group has explained in detail the
sustainable development issues that have a
significant impact in the business, including
the results achieved and the challenges it
faces.
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The Group will ensure that the disclosure
scope and reporting methods of the ESG
Report are generally consistent every year.
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About this Report Continued)

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this ESG Report is derived from the
Group’s formal documents, statistics or public information. The Board
is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its
contents.

Access to the Report

The ESG Report is available in Chinese and English versions. In case
of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English versions of the
ESG Report, the English version shall prevail. You may access the
Group’s official website at www.miricor.com or the website of the
Stock Exchange at http://www.hkex.com.hk for an electronic copy of
the ESG Report.

Sustainability Governance

The Group has established an ESG framework to promote and
implement the Group’s sustainability strategy. To ensure effective
ESG management, our ESG governance structure, composed of
the Board, ESG working group, respective functional departments
and subordinate companies, was established to promote ESG
management and disclosure. The Board, the ultimate decision-making
body of the Group, is responsible for the Group’s ESG governance.
The Board steers the Group’s sustainable development forward and
bears the overall responsibility of its ESG efforts. In the future, the
Board will continue to strengthen ESG risk management and improve
ESG working mechanism and regulatory processes to enhance its
ESG governance standard. The ESG working group, serving on the
supervision and coordination level, is responsible for implementing
ESG governance strategy, coordinating ESG matters, compiling
ESG reports, and reporting relevant work progress to the Board on a
regular basis. Each functional department and subordinate company,
serving on the execution level, is responsible for rolling out initiatives
set up by the ESG working group and reporting relevant work
progress and data.
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About this Report (continued) AR E @)
Sustainability Governance (Continued) AHFEREER(E)
e A ' A
Decision-making level - The Board
REE " Exg
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Supervision and .
o ESG working group
coordination level >
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Functional departments

Execution level and subordinate companies

v

R BAHPIRTEAR
L J |\ J
Stakeholders Engagement BHES R

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies % FA] FHE R R EENBRENFHES2H -
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks  #£ tZEARER THRER EEKS - REFED B
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that BlIZ 5 FEi#FHE - BEER RPN EBL R

are important to our business and established various channels for ZYVZREBERETHEE -

communication.
Stakeholders Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BHE e ZHRE # it
Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes
proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
B BREPIRZEGHNT  BALK HESERE BREBEZEOIRAOLE  EERANH
BRI R ER B MET2ER  BXBAEES &
B M AT A o
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About this Report Continued)
Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholders
HHE

Expectation
ML

AN AN ()

FEHESHE)
Engagement channel Measures
SHRE B it

Shareholders and
Investors

BREREE

Employees

7l
il

Customers

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

AR RER AN
P BT AR AR SRAE R
Flas

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

MEBZE2NMEENTHE
BT BIETFERE A
Mg h&E

Provide safe, high-quality
products and services to
customers

AEFREHRZE  2E
B an M2 AR 75

Annual reports,
interim reports and
announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

Fil - PHWRE

SN

BRBFRE REMBR

-
A R

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism,

and fair mechanism

for employment and
promotion
BIlkEERE  EERE
HEHIA RS 3E R BT A
S 1

i

Customer satisfaction
surveys, customer
feedback activities,

day to day operations/
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
EEmERAE BEPRE
EB) - BEEE @
PR 75 K% 2 o ¥ K 0] FE 1
il

Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports
and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.
BRTBFR PHRE
AER o

RAESHER

BHBRRAGEES RRIER PR 2RE

o

i

Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices
that do not discriminate on grounds

of gender, disability, pregnancy, family
status, race, colour, religion, age or other
conditions recognized in law.
RiEBRMEEN  RETBAE MR - B
xERRKERR BRBe R
- FiRAHAMERTANBRLZ ER
REFER -

Strengthened quality management to
ensure safety, high quality production and
communicate with customers to improve
quality of services.
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About this Report (Continued)

Materiality Assessment

The Group attaches importance to the materiality assessment of ESG
issues for the purpose of timely and comprehensive understanding
of the materiality of each ESG issue to the business development
of the Group and the expectation of stakeholders, in order to
facilitate the Group’s effective disclosure of ESG information and
continuous improvement in the management level of relevant issues.
The materiality assessment on ESG issues of the Group during the
reporting period covers the following steps:

Step 1 The Group identified the following 21 issues in
accordance with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide and based on the business
characteristics and daily operation of the Group.
These issues are considered to have impacts on the
environment and the society during our operation.

Step 2 Based on the understanding of the demands and
expectations of stakeholder during the daily operation,
the Group determined the materiality of ESG issues
by benchmarking the key points and the trend of ESG
works of industry peers.

Step 3 Based on the result of the materiality assessment, the
Group discussed and determined the key disclosure
of the ESG Report for the reporting period and the key
points for improvement in the future ESG work of the
Group.
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About this Report Continued)
Materiality Assessment (Continued)

AR ANRE (8)
BEMTGE ()

Social Aspects
HEEE

Environmental Aspects
REEH

1. Equal opportunity
FERe

. Prevention of child

labor and forced
labor
BriEET Ko

“T

9. Complaint handling
R

13. Community
investment

itEKE

14, Exhaust emissions

BRI

18. Water
consumption

FEKE

2. Employment

. Selection and

10. Protection of

15. Greenhouse gas

19. Paper and

and employee evaluation of intellectual property emissions packaging
benefits suppliers rights BERBHH materials
EERESRR ERRTAHE RERNHER consumption
& HR kB EME
AR
3. Occupational . Control and 11. Customer data 16. Waste 20. Management of
health and safety management on privacy and data management risks associated
BEREHEZ2 environmental and security BENEE with Environmental
social risks along EFYEALRR and Natural
the supply chain zZ2 Resources
ERRERME ERRERRA
EHIRE kit BREBER
el
4, Employee . Product and 12. Anti-corruption 17.Energy 21. Climate change
development and service quality and money consumption RIEE1(
training ERRBRBEE laundering SR B
EEHRE S RESRKERE

1R E BT R - 81EE BB (5D
WA HERAEEREINER - 2
BB R @AM FE - A B 5 E A
E A BB R ERE R E
EHER -

According to the results of materiality assessment, 8 material topics
(note) are regarded as the most concerned issues of stakeholders
and the Group. While taking into account environmental and social
responsibilities, the Group will pay more attention to the above areas,
and strive to achieve continuous improvement and sustainable
business development.

Note: Presented in bold. FisE - LAAREBZS -

2025 Fi#f / SRR EBERAT 53



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R #HERERRE

Environmental Aspects

Emissions

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance
on a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations
can be divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes,
needles, cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been
used or which have become contaminated. Category B includes
surgical dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or
containing free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed
in each doctor’'s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps
Collector. Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle.
Category B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags.
All wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Quiallified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 402 kg
(2024: 305 kg).
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of GHG. Policies and procedures adopted on
resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of
this ESG Report.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any breach
or material non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the Group relating to air emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

Major air pollutants emissions from vehicles during the reporting
period and the corresponding period in 2024 are as follows:

Air Pollutant Emissions

IRIZIEME (8)

By (&)
AEEEBELEREERKEERESE -
NEBRHEY  NhHRZZESERAER

ERE A EERFANBRELEFER
ARE HEREARS[BERER] &0 -

RBEME  AEBLTHNBEMERKE
ATETHAEBEEEARENABRERS
FWBER - MK R MBS URELESR
EREEREZMHERERERIBNR

AR E B M 2024 SRR HIM A - W PN
MEBEZERTRYMT

Z=RTREMEER
Air Pollutant Air Pollutant
Emission (kg) Emission (kg)
ZREEY ZERISRY
Type of Air Pollutants ZREEYER BRE(TR) HHRE(FR)
2025 2024
Sulphur Dioxide & bR 0.02 0.08
Nitrogen Oxides REY 0.70 0.77
Particulate Matter FROFHRLT 0.05 0.06

During the reporting period and the corresponding period in 2024,
the GHG emissions from the operation is set out below:

GHG Emissions

RS HRE M 2024 FHBEHER  2EEL
VEEREHRYEINAT

BEREBHERY

Equivalent CO, Equivalent CO,
emission (kg) emission (kg)
—EtRES —EItREE
Type of GHG emissions BERESEHYER HHE(TR) BEHRE(TR)
2025 2024
Scope 1 Direct emissions EERNERZE2 3 4,346.12 4,765.84
Scope 2 Indirect emissions & = 2 I HER 281,954.98 284,538.55
Total 1T 286,301.10 289,304.39
Intensity (kg/Revenue HK$'000) ®wE(Fr MaETFHEr) 0.71 0.59

Note: EE -

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol and the “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEXx.

BRERRDREBELERBETEN[DEGHT RREER]
N ZFARMEO [ IAREERR G RERRE — Mk
= RIGARAEBURIRERES| G E -
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions
and implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resources more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period and
the corresponding period in 2024 are set out below:

Energy Consumption

RIREME (#)

gREA

mMAEEM B  BERZ2HEIETE -
REEBANELRERREROERER -
51 40 35 E 10 5 B HE L PE T B IR LA R B S 2K
BBl - A EEIRA [ BRPASER]
AE BRI EFER - EFE BRI T -

KR E B M 2024 FRBHIM A - AEB AR
HREZRERESN AT

BEIRHFE
Energy consumed Energy consumed
(kWh) (kWh)
EREREE REREEE
Type of energy feRER (FE&) (FE&)
2025 2024
Unleaded petrol EiiS i 15,550.96 17,056.80
Purchased electricity HMNEE 476,208.00 475,253.00
Total Bt 491,758.96 492,309.80
Energy intensity BERS8 E (TR, Wt F/ET) 1.22 1.00

(KWh/Revenue HK$’000)

Paper Saving

In office, we encourage employee to use both sides of paper
and use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if
possible. Besides, electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication to minimize using paper (e.g. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 756 kg (2024: 525 kg).

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant
authority and turn off the tap when not in use. Normally, bill of
water consumption was included in rental. Thus, record of water
consumption during the reporting period and the corresponding
period in 2024 are not available. The Group is not aware of any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes
or less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from
20° C to 25.5° C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5° C. Also,
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and glasses
and environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g. biodegradable or
phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material

The major packaging material used in our business are mainly
paper and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during
the reporting period and the corresponding period in 2024 are
summarized below:

IRIBEM (&)
HHAE

ERERVERNERSNOER - LEHMm
S BPHEREXNAB209EBHIARN - Z8E
R 20°CE255°CHE BB HZERE A
25.5°C © AN DU B H B R EBIRAEE
TE AR o

BEIRKE

SEREREEAUTERER MRFESEDNA
KRB REm (D10 F] £ YR AR s 1 2 B Bk
EER)TIRAE - AT RERIRE) -

BRMH
BANEGMANIEERMBIERAR
KB o 1 ¥ B K 2024 SFARRE AR A -
ZEMERERB 0T

Packaging Material Consumption

BEMBEFE
Amount (kg) Amount (kg)
Packaging material BEMR HEE(TR) HEE(TR)
2025 2024
Paper ok 18,177.00 20,263.64
Plastic bottle ESiii) 6,817.00 6,807.34

In view of our continuous effort, we target to maintain zero substantial
non-compliance case in relation to the emission of exhaust gases,
GHG, non-hazardous clinical waste, energy consumption and water
consumption in coming five years. Furthermore, we target to reduce
or maintain the emission of exhaust gases, GHG, non-hazardous
clinical waste, energy consumption and water consumption around
the current level for the next reporting period.

ERBEMNBES ) HANBEBRRERR
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental, Health and Safety
Policy”, the Group raises staff's awareness of environmental issues
through education and training and enlist their support in improving
our performance, promote environmental awareness amongst
our customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in sessions
“Emissions” and “Use of Resources”, the Group is allowed to

minimize the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is committed to mitigating the climate change and
enhancing its resilience to adapt to the increasing threat of climate-
related consequences.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks (including significant climate-related issues) by the Group are
summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and considers
the impact and consequence on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place; revises the risk management strategies
and internal control processes in case of any significant change
of situation; and reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

As a result of above risk management process, physical risk
and transitions risks arising from climate change may not bring
significant impacts to the Group’s business. As a supporter of the
recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD), the Group has assessed the potential climate
related risks and identified the rising mean temperature and increasing
severity and likelihood of extreme weather events such as rainstorms,
floods, fire and heatwaves as major physical risks impacting our daily
operation.

The Group’s ESG working group is responsible for identifying and
assessing any climate-related risks to which the Group’s operations
are exposed, and updating the Board with the latest news and
developments on climate regulations and industry benchmark. In
order to cope with climate-related risk, the Group implemented
various emergency response mechanism and purchase adequate
insurance against natural disasters so as to cope with extreme
weather.

In the future, we will continue to identify potential business activities
impacting the environment and develop corresponding improvement
measures, so as to further prevent the possible negative impacts of
our operation on climate change.
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Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating
to human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a commission scheme
which applies to all services and products we offer, including the
sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skincare products.

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities
is applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to
foster their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy
discount for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every
rule in the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employees by gender, age
group, employment type and geographical region as at 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024:

MHeEEm e

BERLEITEE &)

B®(E)

BE - RPARMAERESIREELREF
MR HEHAEEN ARG  fInEST
EEARATERNERFMNES - B4 + -

F M o (05 16450 B9 1R BB B 8 AR B A B I 58

BT E - BERTRR REEL) - £3

% BT - FAR 4 BRI PO 30 (T (3
S TIRAIMERSEE - REBBRES

<P A RDE DI KR o

R2025%3 A31H K&202443 A31 B#ZMHE
B FERAER  EEBEARMEE SNES
B4R -

2025 2024
Number Number
of staff % of total of staff % of total
HEAE A"
ET A Aok ETAH Bok
By gender MR8l 2
Male S 21 9 35 11
Female i 218 91 289 89
Total @t 239 100 324 100
By age group BERARE D
30 or below 30BRIIAT 58 24 90 28
31-40 31-40%% 99 42 146 45
41-50 41-50 5% 57 24 57 18
51 or above 51 3Rk A 25 10 31 9
Total e 239 100 324 100
By employment type REBERES
Contract or short term & #) 5 A B 14 6 12 4
Full-time 2 225 94 312 96
Total @t 239 100 324 100
By geographical region ZihE 8 5
Mainland China and R i N B 239 100 324 100

Hong Kong
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employee turnover rate by
gender, age group and geographical region during the reporting
period and the corresponding period in 2024:

HEEE @)

BEREIERZE)

EEE)

RS AR & 2024 S AR BRI IR ME R -
e 48 Bl I b [ B 0 K 18 B 7 2 5 41 AR 48 40
T

2025 2024
Turnover rate by gender BRI Bl D R K
Male B 68% 54%
Female pegiis 71% 56%
Turnover rate by age group BRERADE DN R AR
30 or below 30BREIA TN 82% 80%
31-40 31-40 5% 75% 51%
41-50 41-50 % 58% 46%
51 or above 51BR A £ 43% 23%
Turnover rate by geographical region it & 2| 5 K %k =R
Mainland China and R A K 70% 56%

Hong Kong

There were total 198 employees (2024: 180 employees) left the
Group during the reporting period.

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot
take time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a
safe and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational ilnesses will
be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness in
maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety training
programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides, safety
equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the responsibility
for the Group to identify and control safety, public health, and
environmental hazards associated with their operations and work
constructively with government agencies and others to develop and
implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect public health,
safety, and the environment.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance
with Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and during each of
the past three years including the reporting period, no work-related
fatalities and no material lost days due to work injury was recorded.

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
Our trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We also provide on the job training to our staff. We
are of the view that the ability to keep abreast of the latest trend in
medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and to offer quality
service will impact our client traffic, revenue growth and financial
performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive
to life-long learning, we were awarded under the ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme and Caring Company Logo during the
reporting period.

Below is a detailed breakdown of the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employment category during the reporting
period and the corresponding period in 2024:

MHeEEm @)

EBERLITERE)

BRRE (E)
BERERMEATEIRBEREFEORMR -
ARAREE FIRE S BB HRIE L - RE
SRR RMEERBA A (SR E st BIch
B R RS o

RS HAR & 2024 FF FE B HARM IR M B K B
BEAE ST IEE A D L MBEMmIT

2025 2024
Trained employee by gender EHREINZIES
Male B 73% 34%
Female M 100% 100%
Trained employee by BEERERESH

employment category ZIEE

Normal —& 100% 100%
Middle R AR 61% 21%
Senior SE 95% 23%
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

The average training hours for employees by gender and employment
category during the reporting period and the corresponding period in
2024 are as follows:

MHeEEm e

BERLEITEE &)

BREREN (E)

1A SR 25 B R 2 2024 4F 48 B0 HA R P9 2 1 B R 4B
BERESH MRS FHZIEHMT :

2025 2024

Hours per Hours per

employee employee

The average training hours for BB NEETEHZIEE BEEE BEER

employees by gender RFE 8

Male B 37.48 6.37

Female M 210.11 273.65

The average training hours for REREREIN

employees by employment category {EEFHIZIIEE

Normal —&R 221.19 307.86

Middle H AR 11.83 3.14

Senior = AR 23.16 3.31

Labour Standards

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at all
its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work as
bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or coercion
of any type related to work. Employment contracts and other records,
documenting all relevant details of the employees, including age, are
maintained and are open to verification by any authorised personnel
or relevant statutory body. The unit provides an annual report to the
functional head on any incidents of child or forced labour. Periodic
assessment is conducted. The human resources department
undertakes random checks of records annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and did not
violated any relevant labour laws and regulations including child and
forced labour laws and regulations.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide
to Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations and appropriate social practices governing
our businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for
transactions with the Group; and promote procurement activities
based on mutual understanding and trust. In order to manage the
environmental or social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen
the control in procurement of treatment devices/consumables and
skincare products as below.

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic and wellness beauty
centres are reliable and capable of delivering desired results for our
clients. To this end, we have established policies and procedures to
evaluate and assess treatment devices. Our marketing and business
development department is primarily responsible for keeping
abreast of the latest technologies and conducting market research
on the latest and prevailing treatment technologies and skincare
products. Periodic meetings are held among our management,
doctors and marketing and business development department
to discuss the latest technologies and skincare products, during
which our marketing and business development department may
recommend the types of treatment devices to procure. From time to
time, suppliers of treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their
treatment devices to us, which may also provide us with a trial period
during which we can evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness
of the treatment devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary
to our existing treatment offerings; (iv) whether it is accredited with
certification and qualification related to environmental protection; and
(v) our internal test results. The approval of our chief executive officer
and doctors must be obtained before we procure a new treatment
device.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Skincare products

The skincare products offered by us are supplied by manufacturers,
all of which are independent third parties. We select and source
skincare products carefully based on factors such as the suppliers’
background, credentials and reputation, product quality and cost.
The approval of our chief executive officer and laboratory technician
must be obtained before we take in any new product for sale. As at
31 March 2025, we have 179 approved suppliers from around the
world (as at 31 March 2024: 99 suppliers). Our suppliers are mainly
located in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Switzerland, France, Japan
and Korea.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high quality.
We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety standards,
as well as those governing testing, advertising and labeling. The
Group was in strict compliance with related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance, Consumer
Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety Regulation
during the reporting period. Our goal is to instill confidence in our
customers regarding our products and services, along with the
necessary information to make informed choices. Therefore, the
Group has a set of policies and procedures to oversee and manage
issues related to responsibilities of our products and services.

HEER@E)

REER B

HEEERE (&)

& E

Bt EEERY AR ETHRE 230
HRBIYE=7F BMNERHEEGER &
FEREE EnRERNAZEHERFEME
BERRBEEER RMENSENTE®
TESHE 2N BRBSITRAER RERE R
B R L - 202593 A31H » FAFHEAR K
Bt R E e 179 B A HE /& FERY (20244 3
AB1H & HEN) - KMHEEREE
AR E A - BE - It - JEE - BAFRE
0

EmEE
AEBBRAREEST TP R L RERREM
MEmRMREBEZE2NESmE - HMIETE
ERFEZE2EE UREEANH BEM
SEHAERED - R EME AR EER
ETHRBDADI R RP - BRENRRCE R
RIEHD CHERZZHRIDRCEEREZ R
RO - BB REEEPHHFIHERMN
RBFRBMEDL  LESELASTEEZNLR
Bt Bt AREHET — RIBERMIE
FrAEEMNEREERMNERKREEE
BRWEE-

2025 Fi#f / SR REBERAT 67



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R #HERERRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic and wellness beauty
services is one of our management priorities. We have adopted
comprehensive and stringent quality assurance and control measures
throughout our business processes that covers, among others, the
following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A
and dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore
must be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant
to the Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Our doctors provide consultation services and perform
specific treatment procedures that are specified in the relevant laws
and regulations. Additionally, they may carry out selective treatment
procedures that are considered high risk, based on their professional
judgement. On the other hand, our trained therapists perform other
selective treatment procedures under the guidance and direction
of our doctors. Selective energy-based procedures are conducted
exclusively by our doctors, taking into account their professional
experience and judgement regarding the risk of severe complications.
These procedures are performed by our doctors when there is a
potential risk of irreversible organ or tissue damage, such as nerve
injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or skin necrosis.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic and wellness beauty centres and a clear division of
labour to improve operational and administrative efficiency and
enhance the quality of our services. Our doctors (assisted by
medical assistants) and trained therapists are mainly responsible
for performing treatments while our aesthetic service specialists are
mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To monitor our client’s
satisfaction towards the treatment received, we contact the client
within several days after the treatment by phone or text message
to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on feedback
for management review. Such internal structure and well defined
responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating the
powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Intellectual Property Rights

We operate our business under the brand name “CosMax+", “VITAE”
and “XOVE”, which we believe embodies our established reputation
for quality services and products. We believe that our intellectual
property rights are critical to our continued success. We primarily
rely on laws and regulations on trademarks and trade secrets and
our employees’ and third parties’ contractual commitments to
confidentiality to protect our intellectual property rights.

The Group’s research and development department is the
department responsible for the work related to intellectual property
rights, responsible for the acquisition, modification, renewal, licensing,
pledge, transfer, logout, and monitoring of intellectual property of all
units including trademarks, functional variable names, copyrights,
patents, responsible for guiding, supervising, and managing the
intellectual property rights maintenance and rights protection and anti-
counterfeiting of all units. The Group regularly conducts intellectual
property rights business training for relevant staff of various units
to enhance employees’ awareness of intellectual property rights
protection. The research and development department conducts
random inspections on the management of intellectual property rights
of various units from time to time.

MHeEEm e

R IR ()

EQEEE)

HEBT (&)

B E RS T
BRPEBEESERREFEATOE BEES
BREFLEED T IESLERITREE
WIRARFNBEEE - RIINEE (5
BEHY) REZIAEMEEE B ETE
2 MERANESBESETTEEHER
W AEANEE UM ESEROBEE -
BAPIAE A2 14 4 K P9 LA B 55 310G 12 77 b 4
EELWER Y REER - BAGE—AR
BERORUTEESRY - R IRERHE
BRERSTELIEEMDLE HERE
FIRF 0 1 A BB A RS R 41 -

FOHE R

B AP A [ CosMax+ | ~ [VITAE ] & [ XOVE | &9 &
RREEEER  MBEMEEERE T &M
HEERBRERHESE -HMRE - H&H
ERSRMBENKNEBREZ - BMEE
KEBHEEEREERTNEEZRERUR
EERFE=ZFTHRES L AHERRERMD
FIHERE

AEEMHBPI/MBERRR TENE
E#BFT - A E R EM AR - HHE - EFEE
BENEMNBERNDRG 2% 58 A
M EW - -8R FH BENSER AR
HE EEVNEESBUMMBEEAZEN
MBI - ASETHESEUMEET
EABETANBEREGEI  BREEW
MBERFRESD MEFFTEHEEE
LR A E R TR TR ITHE -

2025 3R / EHHEREEFR A A

69



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R #HERERRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

Besides, the Group also requires our staff to make every effort to
safeguard and enhance the intellectual property rights of the Group
while fully respecting legal intellectual property rights of third parties.
In addition, the Group would also sign confidentiality agreement
and competition prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers to
prevent the infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees
who are suspected of violating relevant rules shall be under
investigation and the Group would take appropriate actions to this.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook, employee is
required to protect all the customers’ information. Information only
can be used in authorized business activities. If employee disclose
those information to other parties, it is considered as data theft. The
related employee’s employment will be terminated and report to
police for prosecution.

During the year, there was no products sold/service provided subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons and no material complaints
about our products and services received.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities, either
in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming acts
which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. Besides, anti-corruption training were provided to
senior management through internal training during the reporting
period.

The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related
to community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to

programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made donations to various local charitable organisations
during the reporting period. Besides, the Group had also contributed
to the sustainable development of the community by serving with
care and concern for the underprivileged through the activities during
past years as follows:

° Joining Dress Pink Day and made donation to the Hong Kong
Cancer Fund

° Joining the charity walk and made donation to the Hong Kong
Federation of Handicapped Youth

The following is resources contributed for the above mentioned
activities during the reporting period and the corresponding period in
2024 are as follows:
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Total amount of donation BB HKD BT 378,880 433,000

Total number of hours for RREEFERGH R hour AN 1,132 1,601
providing voluntary services

Total number of staff involved for £ 242 {7 FE AR 5 89 person AR 378 511
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providing voluntary services BT #E
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Guide

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEEHE BEH —REERBEREVER E=4:0]

A.  Environmental

218

Aspect At: Emissions

[BEAT e
General Disclosure Emissions
—MEE B

KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions

BRRERIER R IE L AR BB - B

Al.1

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emissions
emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity.

BRRERIERSR B (8E1) kREEZ (BE2) AERBEFNER (WER)BE - PEn

Al.2

KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. The Group generated no

KPI A1.4

PR AE IR IR
A1.4

KPIA1.5
FAR R UE R
A15

significant hazardous waste

during the reporting period.

EXAEEEYEER (WMER)TE - REB RN RS HE & AE
HEERBEEEY -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Recycled paper disposed at
landfills — Use of Resources

FREEREEZERER (MER)RBE - ZEMNEERNRERA —
BIRGERA

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Use of Resources

BT VOB EE R R BEINELREMERNTR - IR A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHR - -BEH —REERBARERER -4:0]
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Emissions and

RA SR E AR 1R
A1.6

Aspect A2:
BEA2 :

KPI A2.1
BB R AUE R
A2.1

KPI A2.2

RARERUE IR
A2.2

KPI A2.5

RSB AR IR
A2.5

and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve

them.

Tmtr@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%f%%Eﬁﬁi &Y
EIEL BRI R -

APAETIZERRE B IR R /=

Use of Resources

BIREM

General Disclosure

—RWE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

BRRESMERER SREEREEERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BREKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

R RERARAPIAT LR B IR R REDEL B IEMERIAN TR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency and target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

et SREGE KR R BERERE - BKMGEMEI LB B R R RE

B E L B IRPTERERA) P 5] -

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.
BRMATABREMEMEER (WER) SEESMNEE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE BEH —REERBRERER =4 0]
Aspect A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[EEAS RIERRAER
General Disclosure The Environmental and
Natural Resources
—MEE RFERRAEIR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment Emissions & Use of
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Resources

BABEIEIE HBllEKEHHRBERAERNEAFERERNEEFETE Heru K &R E
A3.1 RITTE) o

Aspect A4: Climate Change
FEAL - REE(
General Disclosure Climate Change
—HRRE IR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions

taken to manage them.
BREXIET HASCRARESHBETAEEZENEARGHEAEE - REX A2
A4 REREHETENTE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE BEH —REERBRERER =4z 0]
B.  Social
e
Employment and Labour Practices
EBREREBIER
Aspect B1: Employment
[EHEBT &%
General Disclosure Employment
—MREE =
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
geographical region.
MRENIESR RUR - EBEER  FHRANKMESZSIES L - &%
B1.1
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employment
FREBIEE BRI - FRARRMMEE S HEBRALE - &%
B1.2
Aspect B2: Health and safety
[EEB2 : fEREET R
General Disclosure Health and safety
—RRIREE REEZ S
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Health and safety

KPIB2.2
BB R UE R
B2.2

KPI B2.3

RA A R 1R
B2.3

three years including the reporting year.

RIBE = AEE (REREFE) S F 3R TERRTIET AR
Bkt o

Lost days due to work injury.

RTHBERHTIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

WP RANBRBFERZ 25 - LWRAERRITRERTE -
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IRHER BH - —REERBERERER

B AR

ZPAER D AIHIRE -

(=)
e MkEamEEsl @

Section

B

Aspect B3:
[BEBS3 :

KPI B3.1
BB R UE R
B3.1

KPI B3.2

RAR AR IR
B3.2

Aspect B4:
FB4

KPIB 4.1

RASR 48 R IR
B41

KPIB 4.2
RAR AR IR
B4.2

Development and Training

TR RE

General Disclosure
— MR =

The percentage of employee trained by gender and employee category.

RERIREEEREIPNZIEBEA DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
ZURIREERERE D - BREETHZINA TR -

LLabour Standards
5 TR

General Disclosure
— MR E

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.
i BEEANEEA RS ET REHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

B IRE R B ER B BB IR P8 -

Development and Training
EEYE=E

Development and Training
EEYE=E

Development and Training

BRRE

LLabour Standards
2 T 2R

LLabour Standards

B TRA

LLabour Standards
4 TR
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FEHE - BE@-

—BREBERBERENER

S A RS TAR A RKIRE
R4Sl )

Section

3]

Operating Practices

EEED

Aspect B5:
MBS :

KPI B5.1
BB R AUE R
B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3

RAR AR IR
B5.3

KPI B5.4

RS AE MR R
B5.4

Supply Chain Management
HERER

General Disclosure

—RWE

Number of suppliers by region.

minmE DM HEHmEAE -

Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of
supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BRI A EEED
MEBBRITRERTTE -

RMENTHREMNNHEREE - A

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A B HEEGERSNIRE T GRROEN - A RIEH
MITRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, how they are
implemented and monitored.

i BB B I (R 2 IR R an S IRIG B 1E 1 -
TRERF .-

A KRR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHR -EH —REERBARERER =4:0]

Aspect B6:
86 :

KPI B6.1

RASR 48 R IR
B6.1

KPI B6.3

RS AR MUE TR
B6.3

KPI B6.4

RARERUE R
B6.4

KPI B6.5

RASR 48 R IR
B6.5

Product Responsibility
EmAE

General Disclosure

—RWE

Product Responsibility
EmEE
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety Product Responsibility
and health reasons.
EEREEXEMRE

b}

BT EL R ERFEEHMARNKNBE DL EmEME

Number of products and service related complaints received and how Product Responsibility
they are dealt with.

BEBANERSMRBORFHREARBETTE - EmAE

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights
EmEE — MBER

Description and practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
it R E N RIBHRERES FED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures . Product Responsibility —

Quality Assurance
ERET —HEERT

Wl EEREREMNEMBWIER

Description of customer data protection and privacy policies, how they Product Responsibility —

are implemented and monitored. Customer Data Information

Protection
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s BEABERZFTARARIMIRE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting =

CHERESR

wE

Guide (Continued)

g MkEamEEsl @

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE BEH —REERBRERER =4z 0]
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EB7 : R&S
General Disclosure Anti-corruption
— MR R&ES
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Anti-corruption
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
FAREMIEER ROSHRNEETASIEEERBYEERANESFARGHE & R&Es
B7.1 FEnsER o
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, Anti-corruption

KPI B7.3
RAR AR IR
B7.3

how they are implemented and monitored.
R 8645 b SR B IRAR T - ARMEBRITRER X -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to Directors and staff.
fHmEERE TRHENREE -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

Guide (continuead)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs
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Section

B

Aspect B8:
[BEBS :

KPI B8.1

RARERUE R
B8.1

KPI B8.2
RAR AR IR
B8.2

Community Investment

HEERE

General Disclosure
— MR =

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,

labour needs, health, culture, sport).

I EREE (KA -

RIREE STIHEK @F e 8BF) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
EFEIBREMEBAER (WS EXER) o

Community Investment

HERE

Community Investment

HERE

Community Investment

HERE
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
non-surgical medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and sale
of skincare products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 9 to 20 of
this annual report which forms part of this report of the Directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners.
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive
for us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we
will be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which
may in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
Our business operations are mainly based in and we derive most
of our revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the
demand for our medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and
the sale of skincare products are therefore subject to the economic,
social and political conditions in Hong Kong.

In addition, in the past years, a portion of our revenue was derived
from visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong
Kong. Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors
and tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and
tourists to Hong Kong may significantly reduce our revenue derived
from such clients, which could materially and adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies
and performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 47 to 81 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers
are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
104 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Tuesday, 23 September 2025. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Members

The record date for determining the entitlement of the holders
of Shares to attend and vote at the AGM will be Thursday, 18
September 2025. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 18 September 2025 to Tuesday,
23 September 2025 both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares can be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17
September 2025.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 188. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2025, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves
of the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$61,858,000
(2024: HK$60,893,000).

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$378,880 (2024: HK$433,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2025, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2025.
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The maximum number of share options available for grant pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme was 40,000,000, representing 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 1 April 2024, 31 March 2025
and the date of the report.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 1
years and 6 months (expiring on 19 December 2026).

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. LAM Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

By virtue of article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln and Mr. LI Wai Kwan will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Board considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years and continuing thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years, provided that either the Company or
the INEDs may terminate such appointment at any time by giving at
least three months’ notice in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters, including
benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management, after consultation with the chairman and/or Chief
Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BEERGEL
ERTEECRARRT TR BE A=
FEREGHEEENR AEAFN—FEBAS
—FHEHTORZEAMEEBMT AL L
Al

BB IFNTERCD BAR AR LIRS &
RP=F EARRXBILFATESTAS
BRE—HTELRIZEANSEBMAK L
BBRZEE-

MEZZNEERRBFANEG LBEETN
EEEARBITEIAR—FARMEEC
ERERIN TARIEHNREEL -

& BR

BAEREBEETRUNRERLFHEZES -
FHEZEEMIERARKEHEANIER X
TTERABERIR - o o7 B IERCR S 4 % BN AR R
MEE(BRENEEASREEBNEYRE
MEEMRM) AR RAESSFLERR

N
s
=

REARAFRNFHER FHZESHERE
RAIMBEARR - JELBRAE QAN
FE o RANER BERRASEANHE
fEFEELFAE -

EEHFMRAUSRSHMATOFED BIE
RERA M HRARM T8 MO -

Y|

EFENRS  RH AN E D

RERKFAEMER  BEFELAQF
HERARREEFAMBAR RN - K
NRAEESHBEERNEPERAHER
BEARDHUASEEERMEBEANR
5 BHHAK -

2025 3R / EHHEREEFR A A

87



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$4,260,000 (2024: HK$6,351,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains Directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors
Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 21 to 28 of
the annual report.

88  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

BIRRE RIS
AEERBE(RBIEREEFERD) RAE
BERIY —BHEBRHUKAFEAEERINE
a8 ([eEeatE)) - HKDREBEER
FEMBENLEL  YRNRREBES IR
AENE B RSNR BRSTENEERN
BUEEREASEARENEEDFATHE - K
SENEIEFIRABRBESAERKE 2R
HEINMESR -

AEERFEANMEENHEARNEEZR
SEMMT TR EENTREARSE -
ZEWBARAREIBENANETE L
A R SRR R & 5t IR - R IR B RR
REFERAENF BB -

AREEBNEHE2025F3A31BIEFEELD
IRIRAEAET 23 A 4,260,000 7 7T (2024 4 -
6,351,000 70) °

JE R B 1R
ARFERFLEOETRBRABEEERA
AR B3 B2 AW E AR -

REARR ZABERAY  ARASES
ERTRENELAREAERIINARZ
—UBRARET HAERRARREEES
RE-ARACREERERAERBREER
R EEXERRYEERIANEIMER
T8 - ARBEBFELREZRE -

EEWEEFS
EFOHEFBERNAFRFE 21 T28E -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2025, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest
in any businesses or companies that were or might be directly or
indirectly competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to
any concern regarding conflict of interest.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or

Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2025, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), to be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follow:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:
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a. REQXARGIEFR:

Percentage of

the Company’s

Number of issued

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
AKDF BB

EEHA B1ip REME iR & H BAEANEDE
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi Interest of a controlled 275,000,000 68.75%

corporation (Note 1)

RNzt REEEER (M)
Note:
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and 50% by Mr. MA Ting Keung, Patrick
(“Mr. Patrick MA”). Mr. Patrick MA is the spouse of Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi.
Therefore, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. REBZIEROGHFRE:

Percentage of
the Company’s

Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued

Name of Director corporation interest shares held  share capital

KAFEET

BEERR HEEEER 54 REmitE FEROBE REANBEILE

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%

interest of spouse
B2+ HF EnA AREBEZ

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued RIMEZER/IEFIKRBEEHITEBRNAE

ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued EmBEAA  HHF 5'750%5?%17 N
share capital of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick MA is the legal and %L?ﬁ?ﬁiﬁj‘ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂxﬂ?ﬁ‘ﬂ BRRHE
beneficial owner of the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, /AR E@m#EA A (AXF R T #150% 2 1T

representing the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny ~ AXZN o B S LR 5t 4 BRI T 2 LY ECAE -

Bright. As Mr. Patrick MA is the spouse of Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigji,
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is deemed to be interested in all the interest
registered in Mr. Patrick MA’s name in Sunny Bright. Accordingly,
together with the 50% shareholding interest in Sunny Bright registered
in Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi's name, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is taken to be
interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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F BRRR AR AR K A8 E R
2z KRB

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the person 720253 A31H » TH AL (KR FES
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or & E BT A BBIN) KA RHA AIRIEE S
company which were required to be recorded in the register required N Hi & (&5 5 336 IF e % £ BIF & 2 & o fit
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follow: RS RABWT

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2025, other than FEEEFE - 20253 A31H * B ARAQ T
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following ZEZEREZBITHABI > TIH AL EER
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares ARG D SKFE B D P B BIREE 5
or the underlying shares of the Company which were required to M B & IEHI EXVERE 2 K% 3D 3P A A 2 7
be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of FE(ZBREE 5 M HE S0 2 336 (E:2 8 &
the SFO or required to be recorded in the register of the Company 7B & 2 A QBB MAER AR ¢
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
Long positions in shares of the Company: RAEQATRGIER -
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares held/ issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
iy BB KRB E BT
Pt B1ip REME EENROEE BAENE D
Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 275,000,000 68.75%
S F EmEEA
Mr. Patrick MA Interest in a controlled corporation 275,000,000 68.75%
and interest of spouse (Note 1)
HiEmEs EEHEE S KBRS
(BzE1)
Meitu, Inc. Beneficial Owner 20,000,000 5%
EERAA EnHBA
Note: B EE -

1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company 1. 275,000,000 A& A& 17 LA £ %2 (— R R 23 i %+ K

beneficially owned as to 50% by Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and 50% by Mr. Patrick MA. B LA D I E 258 50% R 50% XA F])

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the spouse of Mr. Patrick MA. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick MA BERER - BWMr T REER L AN - Bt -

is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO. RIBEFLFRHEGY - SERLERRABR T
BRI P EAER -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was 1.0% (2024:
8.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 16.0% (2024: 13.1%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2025, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 42.6%
(2024: 46.7%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.

Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

There were no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the reporting period.
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Trade finance and revolving loan facility and disclosure
pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 28 February 2025, G Max Group Limited (the “Borrower”, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the “Bank”)
for trade finance and revolving loan facility up to an aggregated
amount of HK$10,000,000 (the “Facility”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Facility Agreement, the Company
undertakes with the Bank, amongst other things, that Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi, the Chairlady and Director of the Company, Mr. Patrick MA,
the spouse of Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi, and their family members shall at
all times, directly and indirectly, hold no less than 51% of the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Undertaking”).

Failure to comply with the Undertaking constitutes an event of default
under the Facility Agreement, and the Bank may, by notice to the
Borrower, (i) cancel the advances under the Facility; and (i) declare
all amounts outstanding under the Facility and all interest, fees and
commissions to be immediately due and payable.

As of 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this report, the above
facility has not been utilised yet.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other circumstances which
would give rise to a disclosure obligation of the Company under Rule
13.21 of the Listing Rules for FY2025.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the Listing Rules in the reporting period.

BH5MENRBIRERBE RBIE
FHRBIEA1321 RIEE IR E
R2025%2 A28 H ' G Max Group Limited
(MBERA]l  AAFTN—KEAEZEME R
A)E-—RB|T(MRTD RESBEEZ A
10,000,000 8 THE F R E RERERTME
(MEDT I —HrEmE((REHBZD -

RIZEE ek OISR - N R ARITAR (B
TREB)ARFEIERESRIMAL FE
SRELE (REULMER) REREKXBEIRK
EERIFEEFETIRI%HNARREHEIT
P (TEE D) -

REBTAFRERBREBZRE TNENS
o RITAIAERAZ LA - ()BUERE R
TR RHEMBERTHMBERER
RBENFFBENE - BRAMASBERZIHEM -

MR2025F3A3THREEARFEBH MK
A g g -

B EXXPriRBR & SN - AN B 2025 B BUF 2
BEEMEH EHRANEIBVETHRRE
BEELNBER -

RFRBIEIRE
REFATDREFTENEN  ADARRK
SHRNE R L RARENEEARSRE -
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Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and Mr. Patrick MA (collectively the
“Controlling Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things,
each of them does not or will not, and will procure each of their
respective close associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on,
participate in, be engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for
their own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any
other person in any business in competition with or similar to or is
likely to be in competition with the business of the Group upon the
Listing of the Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are
set out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016.

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of
non-competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of
non-competition for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
29 to 46 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period
There was no significant event occurred after the reporting period.
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Auditor ZELEm

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by #AMBBRECD AL KEHMELAEZ -
Ernst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for LK @stAIEHBFAEMER LA ER L
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming EEEE - AR FERERERFE A KR
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young 2 —ERZZEN BB L KSR ST AR

as auditor of the Company. N EZEED ©

On behalf of the Board REEFRT

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited EYEREEERAG
LAl Ka Yee Gigi FE

Chairlady BN

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025 BB 2025%F 6 H25H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHE R E

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to 187, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

=R ER
HPEREBE S ASEMO(ERE
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EEERRE [EHAD G F AT 47 & B B A A
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRESTER

FERETEIE (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEAEFITPRNABRHEN

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

Revenue from treatment services is recognised when such
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Customers may not exercise all of their contractual rights
of the prepaid packages before expiry of the service
period, and such unexercised rights are referred to as
breakage.

The Group recognised an expected breakage amount as
revenue in proportion to the expected pattern of rights
exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of the service
period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid packages is
fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2025,
the carrying amount of contract liabilities amounted to
HK$129,342,000. During the year ended 31 March 2025,
revenue recognised from treatment services amounted to
HK$350,318,000.

The recognition of revenue from the prepaid packages
involves significant management’s judgement to determine
the appropriate amount and timing based on the
Group’s accounting policy for revenue recognition. The
determination of the expected breakage amount involves
significant estimates based on the Group’s historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages and the
expected utilisation pattern, as appropriate.

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

MEETERE

FRETEH )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REEEE R M AR

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages (Continued)

Our audit procedures included:

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;

assessing the estimates used in the determination
of the expected breakage amount such as historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages by
examining the related usage records on a sampling
basis; and

testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of the amount of revenue recognised
during the reporting period and the amount of
contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period by examining the underlying sales contracts
and related records on a sampling basis.
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R E

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Tat (practising certificate number:
PO7060).

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

25 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBEENRHEMAZERKER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
B ZE 20253 A31 HILFE

2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M FE FExT FETT
REVENUE &= 5 403,152 494,260
Other income and gain, net H At A M g 25 0% B8 5 6,448 5,762
Cost of inventories and consumables GFERBFERKR (50,436) (52,839)
Staff costs BT (141,581) (183,820)
Property rentals and related expenses YRS REBERYS (54,193) (67,925)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BB REREITE
equipment (34,957) (42,437)
Other expenses, net HAuhB & 558 (100,062) (159,626)
Finance costs IR ID N 6 (5,354) (5,155)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLATRER(B1R) 7 23,017 (11,780)
Income tax expense Friefims 10 (12,427) (836)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERA(FE) 10,590 (12,616)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hz2mBA~
INCOME/(LOSS) (B#E)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ REZ BRI AIEEEF D EE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BRHEMEEEA
subsequent periods: (fE518)
Exchange differences on translation of BREGINETEOE N =5
foreign operations 209 (1,334)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ S EZMEWA (E18)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR Fokc) 10,799 (13,950)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AAREBRRESZFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERER(HE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted ERREE HK2.65 cents HK(3.15) cents
2.65 781l (3.15) 711l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

meEMBRRER
As at 31 March 2025
7202543 A31H

2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEKEE 13 50,121 85,789
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(a) 78,541 83,107
Deposits B 18 12,814 9,559
Deferred tax assets EEIREE 25 14,814 18,426
Total non-current assets EMENEELRE 156,290 196,881
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 16 35,490 42,151
Trade receivables B 5 R R 17 3,888 13,402
Prepayments, deposits, FENEIE - &S -
other receivables and other assets Hib e WBR R R b & E 18 27,174 41,271
Tax recoverable A] Y Bl #5418 273 3,305
Pledged time deposits B EBER 19 65,847 62,604
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREeEEY 19 182,320 119,829
Total current assets mEEELE 314,992 282,562
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B REMNER 20 6,336 10,561
Other payables and accruals H bR ERTE A 21 23,675 29,944
Contract liabilities and deferred revenue & #)8 & RIELE I 2= 22 183,730 182,965
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPEIRITER 23 5,850 12,510
Lease liabilities HEAE 14(b) 36,856 35,731
Tax payable e R TR 6,507 1,221
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E18 AN FE 24 900 5,045
Total current liabilities mEBEER 263,854 277,977
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEEFE 51,138 4,585
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 207,428 201,466
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE M RBAR R R

As at 31 March 2025
M20254F 3 H31H

2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 46,056 51,508
Provision for reinstatement costs BB R AN B 24 11,056 8,800
Deferred tax liabilities FRIEFIE A E 25 2,754 4,395
Total non-current liabilities BB ERTE 59,866 64,703
Net assets BEFE 147,562 136,763
EQUITY s
Issued capital BB TR A 26 4,000 4,000
Reserves & 28 143,562 132,763
Total equity HmiaE 147,562 136,763
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln
Y&+ MTF=REE
Director Director
EE E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A < 45
mEEREHR
For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

Share  Exchange
Issued premium fluctuation Retained Total
capital account reserve profits equity
2R i) EX RE Bx
R HEERE  KDRE Py #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FEL THx THT
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4 A1 A 4,000 67,788 254 78,671 150,713
Loss for the year FEBHA - - - (12,616) (12,616)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZHEES
for the year:
Exchange differences on MEBNEBNELZSE
translation of foreign operations - - (1,334) - (1,334)
Total comprehensive loss FEZEBERRE
for the year - - (1,334) (12,616) (13,950)
At 31 March 2024 and 202453 A31 AR
at 1 April 2024 R2024F4 A1 H 4,000 67,788 (1,080) 66,055 136,763
Profit for the year FEHF - - - 10,590 10,590
Other comprehensive income FEEMEZEKA
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBNELEZSE
translation of foreign operations - - 209 - 209
Total comprehensive income FEZAMAEE
for the year - - 209 10,590 10,799
At 31 March 2025 20253 A31H 4,000 67,788* (871)* 76,645* 147,562

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$143,562,000
(2024: HK$132,763,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

HZERBRFEEGEVBRAKRZGERER

143,562,000 7% 7T (2024 £F : 132,763,000/ 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg= FET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHFEBREERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI RLRF(EE) 23,017 (11,780)
Adjustments for: TP B IBFEE -
Interest income A B A 5 (6,108) (5,323)
Finance costs B 7% A AN 6 5,354 5,155
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREREBTE
equipment 7 34,957 42,437
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREESENE 7 43,027 50,807
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BE KRR ERE
equipment 7 = 1,430
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERE ﬁ%dﬁﬂﬁ 7 - 1,170
Reversal of impairment of H 5 B ERSURE R E
trade receivables, net JEER 7 (55) (@477)
Impairment of deposits ZeRE 7 316 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of HE WEDE  BER
items of property, plant and FEEE BB ()
equipment, net Pt 7 2,375 (60)
Write-off of inventories WiEEE 7 3,726 1,979
Reversal of provision for 1E18 K A $ 1 7 [l
reinstatement costs 24 (944) -
105,665 85,338
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®L,(Gm) 2,894 (6,451)
Decrease in trade receivables 5 R R 9,596 4,668
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BT RUE - e - Hi
deposits, other receivables and FEMAR R Bt & B
other assets A 9,837 (3,594)
Increase in pledged time deposits 2 AR B3 17 58 AN (3,243) (190)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z S MR MO ) (4,225) 17
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HMENERRESTE
and accruals =GR (6,264) 8,261
Increase in contract liabilities AR EE R R ZE N
and deferred revenue 765 917
Decrease in provision for 118 R 7 12 R
reinstatement costs (945) (1,265)
Cash generated from operations REXBMEANERS 114,080 87,701
Interest received B Y ELF B 6,853 5,044
Interest element of lease payments HEMFAF B D (4,775) (4,144)
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net ERNEBNEHEE (2,138) (4,150)
Net cash flows from operating activities 4 & 5E B P15 MEFER 114,020 84,451
CASH FLOWS FROM REFHFERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BENMEEER
plant and equipment (1,877) (26,114)
Deposits paid for purchases of items BEWE BELSEEED
of property, plant and equipment EftiEe (76) (101)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BERKREIEE
property, plant and equipment FriaE 205 60
Placement of non-pledged time FABE A B 2 3 0 B EL &l A
deposits with original maturity of more WEEREREREE
than three months when acquired (31,706) (44,146)
Withdrawal of non-pledged time RN AR REEA B BB
deposits with original maturity of more =i A &Y R E B E R
than three months when acquired 2,501 11,301
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & EBFTRAIR & R EF5E (30,953) (59,000)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= o~ —1
mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHABRERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITER 29(b) (6,660) (6,660)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRHASE D 29(b) (42,788) (47,921)
Interest paid ERFE (579) (1,005)
Cash flows used in financing activities BMEESMAB SRR (50,027) (55,586)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & R B &S @Y M,
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rd) #58 33,040 (30,135)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#MHE & MRS EEY
of year 75,683 105,610
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 9N FE =& & B 1) 52 28 )% 58
net 246 208
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FARMERESERRESZEY
END OF YEAR 108,969 75,683
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH R &R R & EEY Atk
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS iy
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHH 56,842 63,819
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 A B R 2| 2 B
maturity of less than three months DR =E A
when acquired BT BRER 52,127 11,864
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 8 A B R 5| 2 B
maturity of more than three months 8 38 = & A /Y
when acquired R R T B 73,351 44,146
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RE AR R AT
in the consolidated statement of ReLRRESEFEYD
financial position 19 182,320 119,829
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 8 A B R 2| 2 B
maturity of more than three months FBE =& A MW
when acquired BEEMTE BTN (73,351) (44,146)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REBReRERMIRES R
in the consolidated statement of BeEEY
cash flows 108,969 75,683
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. RalkAEEER

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is a limited liability EMEREBEBRAR A —ENHASE
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal EFMKIHERAR - AREMNEE
place of business of the Company is located at 18/F, Nan Fung EEMBUNRBERRTHEFSSH
Tower, 88 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. HERNE18E -

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively RAEE  ARalREKB AR (578
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the [RNEBE]) ZEXERBEBEXZATRE
provision of medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and EEARBREEEMBEE °

the sale of skincare products.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company EFEERE ARAFMEAZERAG M
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny BERRARIAEERERRAR (—ME
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the REBRZESHMKIZIHAT) °

British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries MEBARZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RAREEMBRRIZFHBOT :
follows:

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Company
ANREGERER DL
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BT
EMAYL BT ZER
A1 S TR A E# BE FEER
Coresmax Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI") HK$2 100 - Investment holding
EBEAES 28T REZKR
(IRBRLES])
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BVI USS$1 100 - Investment holding
ABREAES 1% RERZKR
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
£ 18T RUEEBRE
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skincare products
EWMER (FH)BRAA B 1B HEEEER
Miricor Cosmeceuticals (Guangzhou) — People’s Republic HK$50,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of skincare
Company Limited* of China (“PRC")/ products
Mainland China
mEARLA 50,000,000 70 EEEmMLE
(TR B,/ E R
Cos Max Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
aesthetic services
Bk 18T RUEBZXARE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE2025F 3 A31HIEFE

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NEIMEEER &)
MEBARZER ()

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Company
ERAREREE DL
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BT
MK/ BER LER
A1 EESiE R A E# Mg TEXR
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUBEXERE
CM Technology Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
Eit 1T RUEEERYE
CMIP Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Ownei of trademarks
LRARLA HEELEE 17 BBEAA
Cos Max E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Sale of skincare products
B 187 HEEEEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100 Provision of medical
(TST) Limited aesthetic services
Bt 300,000/ 7T REBEXARY
Surplus Power Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
el YN G 1T REEBRE
Vitae Wellness Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of wellness beauty
services
0 18T REEEXARE
Vitae Wellness Beauty Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 100 Provision of wellness beauty
(Central) Limited services
Eit 20,000/ 7T REEEEDRE
Vitae Wellness Beauty Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 100  Provision of wellness beauty
(TST) Limited services
Eh 20,0007 7T REEEEDRE
XOVE HK Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of skincare products
0 1,000,0007% 7T HEEEEM

This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under

PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ZMBARRETREZRECRIINGBEE

-

EXRMIDEERREARBEAFEE
BREAREULAREEEFETXR
BOZARBNBRR - EFRRHNH
Hib B AR FBEERBAENRTTE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies 2. SETEK
2.1 Basis of Preparation 21 EEHEE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards are described below:

(@  Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction
to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right
of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and
leaseback transactions with variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate occurring
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
including what is meant by a right to defer
settlement and that a right to defer must exist at
the end of the reporting period. Classification of
a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be
settled in its own equity instruments, and that only
if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-
current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions
of its liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and 2024 and
concluded that the classification of its liabilities as
current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does
not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.3 Issued but not yet Effective HKFRS Accounting 23 EEMEENRERNEBIRE

Standards s E RS A

The Group has not applied the following new and revised REBRZEWBHRERILFEER

HKFRS Accounting Standards, that have been issued but AT EBMEERERNTET R

are not yet effective, in these financial statements. The CIETBREMBREEL T E

Group intends to apply these new and revised HKFRS Ble REEBNZEH LEE

Accounting Standards, if applicable, when they become RIEBVBHREEA G ER L

effective. R T LABRA (W@ ) -

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in EERBREEN HERZHEIR

Financial Statements® EALEACH] #&E
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public BRUBREER HFOARHEGFAA
Accountability: Disclosures® F19RELT B R

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification BEUMBREEN 2BIASBRIEN

and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial EORRARUE 7
Instruments? REREBETHEB]

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature- BEURREED  BROEBESGEFLE

and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity? ZORRARYE AL
REEANETHET
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEUMBREED RELFHAEBENTY
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its E0RRERET AELEZANEE
Associate or Joint Venture* EREBRET  HEXTA
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability' BB e RE AR
ERbH )

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, R BHEER  BAVKEREEN
HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72 EIEAIMEE BN BENE
Standards — Volume 11 2 - E11f SERETH

BAEBREER
FO% - BAUH
BEERNE10TR
BEAGHERETR
il

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 ! %2025? 11 ERBOFE

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 2 ?’\3?1%6%; 11 ERBOFE

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 8 ?’\!iFZEﬁO%;K$1 A1Bsz&RE6F

January 2027 &/ $RE HAR A

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for ¢ 5% i A 2 H A8 RS E - 1B AT IR AR

adoption

116 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is described below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been
brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes,
HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation
within the statement of profit or loss, including specified
totals and subtotals. Entities are required to classify
all income and expenses within the statement of
profit or loss into one of the five categories: operating,
investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued
operations and to present two new defined subtotals.
It also requires disclosures about management-defined
performance measures in a single note and introduces
enhanced requirements on the grouping (aggregation
and disaggregation) and the location of information in
both the primary financial statements and the notes.
Some requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are
moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as
HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements.
As a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition,
there are minor consequential amendments to other
HKFRS Accounting Standards. HKFRS 18 and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRS Accounting
Standards are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted.
Retrospective application is required. The Group is
currently analysing the new requirements and assessing
the impact of HKFRS 18 on the presentation and
disclosure of the Group’s financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.3 Issued but not yet Effective HKFRS Accounting 23 CEMENRERNEBRLE
Standards (Continued) BEENSFERE)

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying the
recognition, measurement and presentation requirements
in other HKFRS Accounting Standards. To be eligible,
at the end of the reporting period, an entity must be a
subsidiary as defined in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, cannot have public accountability and must
have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares
consolidated financial statements available for public
use which comply with HKFRS Accounting Standards.
Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is a
listed company, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS
19. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries are considering
the application of HKFRS 19 in their specified financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments
to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments clarify the date on which a financial asset
or financial liability is derecognised and introduce an
accounting policy option to derecognise a financial liability
that is settled through an electronic payment system
before the settlement date if specified criteria are met.
The amendments clarify how to assess the contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
environmental, social and governance and other similar
contingent features. Moreover, the amendments clarify
the requirements for classifying financial assets with non-
recourse features and contractually linked instruments.
The amendments also include additional disclosures
for investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial
instruments with contingent features. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment to
opening retained profits (or other component of equity) at
the initial application date. Prior periods are not required
to be restated and can only be restated without the use of
hindsight. Earlier application of either all the amendments
at the same time or only the amendments related to
the classification of financial assets is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts
Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity clarify the
application of the “own-use” requirements for in-scope
contracts and amend the designation requirements for
a hedged item in a cash flow hedging relationship for in-
scope contracts. The amendments also include additional
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to understand the effects these contracts have on an
entity’s financial performance and future cash flows.
The amendments relating to the own-use exception
shall be applied retrospectively. Prior periods are not
required to be restated and can only be restated without
the use of hindsight. The amendments relating to the
hedge accounting shall be applied prospectively to new
hedging relationships designated on or after the date
of initial application. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 shall be applied
at the same time. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was
removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

2.

TR (8)

2.3

E BB RERNE B I
BEENSFHEL @)
BEMBRELERNE W NEAR
BHRELNETRETLERKES
ARBERLEENAE KB BHRE
NAMTERIRENER  XE&
FEBERNGNRSREH PER
FREIFIEBEERE 5
NERBINEE EHFERERE
REREATRZEANEERY
BRAMAKRKASRENTE -
85 R PISME S AR R B 1B FT B B
BEMR - BEMEBASEY Y i
BERFERERANBERAT S TES -
B & St RE S RT BB I R
ARERERZBRZRIEEN
MEHER - NFREER &
BB REENFEIRLE BT
WEENF7RETEARER -
ZEEERHAKENT R
RIEEMBEATE -

BREVBRELRFE10H BB
Gt ERE28RHERI S Y E R
MR EEREI0FRE B S
ERF 28Rz HAMREERE
ENRRAERRIZCENEE
HESTEME R EM N —EUE -
HZEERE BEELERE
BBK-BXBE BXEER
THRZEENEDNER -8
REBRIEBR-—BAEXBNEE
B HZRXpEENRSEIER
REZEREENBRANER  HE
AT HBREENZB L AFH
BERANELE SR - ZFER]
RRAKAFER - T B GHED
ARECEHENEHBEBEMBRE
FRAIF10FE R BB G ERE28
SRAERT VSR B A2 A B o R
& HEET B AT AT ERAR o

2025 3R / EHHEREEFR A A

119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1,
IG14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced
paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet Effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments
clarify that when a lessee has determined that a
lease liability has been extinguished in accordance
with HKFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply
paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise any
resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition,
the amendments have updated certain wording
in paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A
of HKFRS 9 to remove potential confusion. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described
in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example
of various relationships that might exist between the
investor and other parties acting as de facto agents
of the investor, which removes the inconsistency
with the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS
10. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The
amendments replace the term “cost method” with
“at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the
prior deletion of the definition of “cost method”.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

2.

TR (8)
23 CEMGENAERNEBHE

£}

HEREFER (&)

[ =R o

ERMBREENFIRD
BTA: ZEEERE A
HABTHERGBECRES
BB REERFIRR L
o AHEABREBEBME
WEEAFEIREII3R
YRBRPERMEENE
o] e 25 5K 85 48 © BE S
EFCEMERMBREE
AIE 95 EL13RKREFE
BI 5 #R &5 R SE 95K M 8 A
ME TRE - OBRBER
B RNFIREEM - AHZ
FEFI TS HARNKE
BRELTAEATE -

L faras
25

EEMBREEAE10%
BHUFHREL 2L BTE
BBV BmEERIZE 1098
EBTAR AT BRERK
BEEHEFAREEERRE
M H b & 5 2 AT B 17 FE Y
EEHERNER —EH T -
BHRERBMEHREERNSE
105 EB7TSERMRET—H 2
B AHIREER -BHZ
ZEIITEHAEENT
BREEAMEATE -

EREEHEUFETRAL T
EX R ATMER TAR A
MERR  ZFEINER
SRHERIE 7R E 37 RIATR
AR — B TARASE] »
RFFRFPEM - AHZFE
I NG HAREE NS HRE
EEERTE -

2025 3k / SHHEREEER AT

121



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

U)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(i)

(v)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and
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2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEEEEX#E)
Related parties (Continued) BEAs (&)
(b)  (Continued) ) (#&)

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Treatment devices 20%
Tools and equipment 25%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. At inception or on reassessment of a
contract that contains a lease component and non-lease
components, the Group adopts the practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components and to account
for the lease component and the associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commmencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. GETHEK @
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEEEEXE)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised
cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
o repay.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of
generally within three months that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR#)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEETEE#E)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
be that which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@  Provision of medical aesthetic and wellness beauty
services
Revenue from treatment services, medical
consultation services, prescription and dispensing of
medical products are recognised when the services
have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as
contract liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Customers may not exercise all
of their contractual rights of the prepaid packages
before expiry of the service period, and such
unexercised rights are referred to as breakage. The
Group recognised an expected breakage amount
as revenue in proportion to the expected pattern
of rights exercised by the customers. Upon expiry
of the service period, the unutilised portion of the
prepaid packages are fully recognised in profit or
loss.

(b)  Sale of skincare products
Revenue from the sale of skincare products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the skincare products.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs

Costs incurred to obtain a contract with a customer are
capitalised as an asset if the costs are expected to be
recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to
recover the goods expected to be returned by customers.
The asset is measured at the former carrying amount
of the goods to be returned, less any expected costs
to recover the goods and any potential decreases in
the value of the returned goods. The Group updates
the measurement of the asset for any revisions to the
expected level of returns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from a customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.
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2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEETTBE(E)
Employee benefits EEREF
Retirement benefit schemes RIKIE G2

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

The recognition of revenue from the prepaid packages
involves significant management’s judgement to determine
the appropriate amount and timing based on the Group’s
accounting policy for revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with
future tax planning strategies.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had tax losses of
HK$57,185,000 (2024: HK$25,372,000) carried forward for
which deferred tax assets have not been recognised. These
losses related to subsidiaries that have a history of losses, have
not expired, and may not be used to offset taxable income
elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have neither any
taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities
available that could partly support the recognition of these
losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Group has
determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on
these tax losses carried forward.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Utilisation pattern of medical aesthetic and wellness
beauty services

Customers may not exercise all of their contractual rights of
the prepaid packages before expiry of the service period, and
such unexercised rights are referred to as breakage. The Group
determines the expected breakage amount with reference to
the Group’s historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid
packages and the expected utilisation pattern, as appropriate.
Estimates of the expected breakage amount are sensitive to
changes in circumstances and the Group’s past experience
may not be representative of the actual outcome in the future.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
HK$50,121,000 (2024: HK$85,789,000) and HK$78,541,000
(2024: HK$83,107,000), respectively. Further details are
disclosed in notes 13 and 14(a) to the financial statements,
respectively.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates.
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Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services
segment, which is principally engaged in the provision of
medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services, and the sale
of skincare products in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment is focused on the
operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s
resources are integrated and no discrete operating segment
financial information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

SEDEEM
AEBEE—EA2REEDE (AFEF
MUEBEXBTREFXETRE D) L
IEREFERPEAMUYEERMHESE
AREFERRBARHEREEEmM °
HRAREE RS —EIE - FAibrEA
BEENHNMBER  SRERDE
HRBRFEFEAARETIZLER
RAZHRWEMUAEERRBELRE
RE-Et WEEINEEDEHER -

i EE #
(a) REIBEF KSR

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong BA 400,318 450,819
Mainland China R A 2,834 43,441
Total revenue FEll g 403,152 494,260

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the services provided or products delivered.

bt s E SR IR R R R
NEMNOLEED -
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4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
(b) Non-current assets

2EDEBER @)
HWEER ()
(b) FEBDEE

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAET

Hong Kong BB 128,790 164,445
Mainland China R E s 49 4,552
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 128,839 168,997

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer
of the Group accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total
revenue during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no
information about major customers is presented.

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net

LA RBDEENEMRIEEE
WEFL  BETEREEMTA
FAEETRIAE EE

FEEFEH

B E2025F 20243 A31H IEF
B BHRAEBME-—REAMEHEE
A R U aR I A (G BB AN SR B 4B U = Y
10% WA EENEBZEFER -

H A U R W as % 58

An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wz DT ZZDT :
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers & F & # k=
Treatment services BRI 350,318 374,538
Skincare products EEESM 52,804 119,641
Medical consultation services BEZBRS 3 9
Prescription and dispensing of Bz 77 M B B AR 75
medical products 27 72
Total @t 403,152 494,260
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net Continued) 5. W25 ~ E b Ug A N W 35 7% 58

(%)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFAHWE
() Disaggregated revenue information i) SDHEWHEEHR
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Types of goods or services ERSREESE
Provision of medical aesthetic and 1R EEXEA KL A /E XD RE
wellness beauty services 350,348 374,619
Sale of skincare products HEEEEM 52,804 119,641
Total Bt 403,152 494,260
Geographical markets i i3 T 45
Hong Kong BE 400,318 450,819
Mainland China B A i 2,834 43,441
Total @t 403,152 494,260
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 228 e 5 AR
Goods or services transferred at EREIERE QRS
a point in time 52,834 119,722
Services transferred over time i I FE] B8 2 AR 7S 350,318 374,538
Total @t 403,152 494,260
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net Continves) 5. U 7% ~ E U A & Uk 25 75 58
(%)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEFEHWE (&)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) i) SHFWEERE)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TEREMMBSHERNKES
recognised in the current reporting period that were HOEHESEF ARMERINEG
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the HEfE
reporting period:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Revenue recognised that was FFAREHYIEHNAEN
included in contract liabilities at BRI =
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Treatment services BRERS 114,704 138,526
Skincare products & E 11 3
Total @zt 114,715 138,529
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of medical aesthetic and wellness beauty
services

The performance obligation associated with treatment
services is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered. The performance obligations associated with
medical consultation services and prescription and
dispensing of medical products are satisfied at the point
in time when the services are rendered.

Sale of skincare products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the skincare products and payment is mainly settled
in cash and/or by credit card, except for corporate
customers, where payment is due within 60 days from
delivery.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net Continued) 5. W a5 ~ H A U A K& Uk

Y

R

(#%&)
An analysis of other income and gain, net is as follows: HMRA R FEITOT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Bank interest income RITF B WA 6,108 5,323
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE BERREHEE
and equipment, net W F 58 - 60
Others HAitb 340 379
Total HEt 6,448 5,762
6. Finance Costs 6. B
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BIER A DTIAT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Interest on bank loans RITERF B 579 1,011
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 4,775 4,144
Total FCEy 5,354 5,155
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7. Profit/(loss) Before Tax 7. BR¥ArRA,(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBBR A SR (EBIE) JE
(crediting): B G A) TR EESEE
2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=2 FET T
Auditor’s remuneration % Gl 1,600 2,032
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WERRETE
equipment 13 34,957 42,437
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14(a) 43,027 50,807
Lease payments not included in Tt AHEGGBREZ
the measurement of lease liabilities HERR 14(c) 1,003 6,321
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERNHEZ (TEE
directors’ and chief executive’s EERFETHRAEHNS
remuneration (note 8)): (MfzE8))
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e fEALNEBL 123,963 167,301
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  iE R 48 F 51 21 £ 7
(defined contribution schemes)* (EREEIETED 4,224 6,315
Total HEt 128,187 173,616
Foreign exchange differences, net MW ZR 860 700
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB KR ERE
equipment® 13 - 1,430
Impairment of right-of-use assets* HRAREERE" 14(a) - 1,170
Reversal of impairment of B 5 e WER FURE
trade receivables, net* SRR 17 (55) (477)
Impairment of deposits* e RmE" 18 316 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of items of & i t54¥ % - BE &
property, plant and equipment, net wEEEEBR (KaE)
SFEE 2,375 (60)
Write-off of inventories* MEEFEE" 3,726 1,979
# Included in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit # AR EERRAMEEEERO At
or loss and other comprehensive income. SRR o
There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the * 1 AN R B VE 7 08 = 7T B DA HURER A it 3K
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. IKFERE S WA -
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneraton 8. ZEENMFETHAEME
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BREEEBHERIMBRAE ([BX
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Frl) &% EmHEA - BEQRGHE
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 383(1)@) * (b) * (c) & () 1& A KA 7] (3 55
“Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and () of the Hong EENEEF) RBOIFE2D BHEEZ AR
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies FEEEREFETRAEMEHT :

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Fees e 1,212 1,212
Other emoluments: HEiie :
Salaries and allowances Fre KOERA 9,733 8,556
Bonuses TE4T 2,413 400
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K42 A5+ 2] 4 7%
(defined contribution scheme) (EREMKETED 36 36
Subtotal NEE 12,182 8,992
Total HEt 13,394 10,204
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNRBILIIERITEETINH
during the year were as follows: HWET
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David B0 B 5 A 204 204
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo EL &R AN 5 A 204 204
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FEERE 204 204
Total mat 612 612
There were no other emoluments payable to the FR WEMLMEMENTEL
independent non-executive directors during the year IERMTESE S (2024 F : F) o
(2024 Nil).
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration
(Continued)

8. EFELTBITHAEMN

& (&)

(b) Executive directors (b) BITES

Retirement

benefit
Salaries and scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses contributions remuneration

HeR BHRER
ok )30 B4 BE- L3 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THEL THL TEL THEL

2025 2025
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Pt - 7,100 2,200 18 9,318
Mr.Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln il F =4 - 2,633 213 18 2,864
Dr. Lam Ping Yan WREBE 600 - - - 600
Total et 600 9,733 2,413 36 12,782
2024 2024 F
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Pt - 6,000 - 18 6,018
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln il =4 - 2,556 400 18 2,974
Dr. Lam Ping Yan HEREEE 600 - - - 600
Total war 600 8,556 400 36 9,592
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the FR o RNREBWERE S EN B

Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2024: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2024: Nil).
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9.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two

(2024 two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out

in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the

remaining three (2024 three) highest paid employees who are

&&= OES

FARE &= HES BIEME (2024
F-MB)ESF FMFBEEHN LM
8. FIRHMB =R (2024F : =) 3
ARREBREBITRABNZS M

neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as EEMHMFBEOT :
follows:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Salaries and allowances e MOERL 8,872 12,914
Bonuses 14T 255 250
Retirement benefit scheme contributions i /K48 K5 2 7%
(defined contribution scheme) (FREH-KETE) 54 36
Total @t 9,181 13,200

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

HFMNFATEENIFFEERIFEET
BAERSFHMEENAZBMT

Number of employees

EE A
2025 2024
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T £ 2,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T & 2,500,000 78 7T 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 i 7T & 5,500,000 7 7T 1 2
Total st 3 3

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the

Group to the highest paid employees as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office

(2024 Nil).

RAFEER  AEBYEAZSEHE
BX R ENMESEAMAREBR®
AN AR 5 B B MY 48 o8 1 & B B e (B
(2024 4F : f®) -
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10. Income Tax 10. FT1ISH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEMNERDBEBEFARBBEED
(2024: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in T ERR B8 72 16.5% (2024 4 -
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the 16.5%) B R IREBE  HAEE—
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits KB R AR - 2R E)BFISTMRK
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2024: HK$2,000,000) BIETHEERETE ZWBAAE
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% 2,000,00078 7T (2024 4 : 2,000,000787T)
(2024: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed JiE SR B 0% F) 1% 8.25% (2024 4F : 8.25% )
at 16.5% (2024: 16.5%). BB R AT - 8RS A FE R BOE A R IR
16.5% (2024 9F : 16.5%) BT X 7 o
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current — Hong Kong VAR — A
Charge for the year FREZH 10,344 2,966
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BAREFEBETR/
prior years (EREER ) 112 (2,597)
Deferred (note 25) RAE (MH5E25) 1,971 467
Total tax charge for the year FARIBE K425 12,427 836
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to REBLERERREBRFEAER,(E8)
profit/(loss) before tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate to FENRIERY (Ke) RIEASEE
the tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: BREGENRIERZNEERNT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BREBLATDRE T (EE) 23,017 (11,780)
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 1% & 4% T #1 & 16.5% =1 i
16.5% (2024: 16.5%) (2024 £ - 16.5%) 3,798 (1,944)
Lower tax rate under two-tiered profits tax /& FI 1S5 B E H| [ T AR
rates regime =% (165) (165)
Difference in tax rates for specific provinces 4% & & 17 8k & b1 B8 28 /5 59
or enacted by local authority HEm=Es (1,796) (3,323)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B HAR BN B R 1R
previous periods {EH SR 112 (2,597)
Income not subject to tax BAFRB WA (1,113) 917)
Expenses not deductible for tax ANATHF A 2,098 1,031
Tax losses utilised from previous periods i@ 7+ HAfS  8) F 7 18 &5 48 (2,967) (207)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIBEIE 6,702 4,541
Others HAitb 5,758 4,417
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate  1Z R E @ BEEE T R+ B FE T H 12,427 836
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11.

12.

13.

Dividend 1. I8
The board of directors of the Company does not recommend ARAREEGTERIKRNEZ2025F3
the payment of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 A31BIEFEEMARE (2024 F : &) ©
March 2025 (2024: Ni).
Earnings/(loss) Per Share Attributable to 12, ARAERARERTE AR
: : — =
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Company EERAERN, (FHB
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is BERAEF,(FBB) BB HIRIE
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity ARRERRERFTAEABMFTE
holders of the Company of HK$10,590,000 (2024: loss of 4 #1110,590,000 7% JT (2024 F : 18
HK$12,616,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary 12,616,000 70) R FAC EHITEING B
shares of 400,000,000 (2024: 400,000,000) outstanding during Fi% B9 AN £ 5 £ 400,000,000 % (2024 4F :
the year. 400,000,000 %) st E 1S -
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue HZE2025F 2024 F 3 A31HILFE -
during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024. REETEEBTERETEBR -
Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W% - WFE M&E
Leasehold Furniture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
AENEEE GBEREE  BERE  IARRE  WOERB nE EKRE E2h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERL TER TER TERL TER TER
31 March 2025 202563831A
At 31 March 2024 and R4EIANBR
at 1 Apr 2024 Ro0uMELA1R:
Oost A 111,312 10,823 99,335 12,688 867 2,431 241 260,127
Accumulated depreciaion  Z:FTERAE
and impairment (80,348) (5,914) (66,819) (6,565) (683) (2,398) (11,611) (174,338)
Net carrying amount EmEE 30,964 4,909 32,516 6,323 184 33 10,860 85,789
At 1 April 2024, net of ROUELA1E
accumulated depreciation BB EFITE
and impairment RAfE 30,964 4,909 32,516 6,323 184 K] 10,860 85,789
Additions NE 323 3 472 % - - 985 1811
Disposals/write-off e /M - ] (157) (2,349) - - 1) (2,580)
Depreciation provided durng AN E & &
the year (15,225) (1,665) (11,681) (2,613) (83) (16) (3,674) (34,957)
Bxchange realignment A% - - - ® - - - 0]
At 31 March 2025, net of R2025E3A31E
accumulated depreciation  CHIB ZiHE
and impairment RRE 16,062 3,244 21,150 1,448 101 17 8,099 50,121
At 31 March 2025: ROBEIANA:
Cost s 103,696 10,821 98,650 8,127 867 2431 23,224 247,816
Accumulated depreciaion  Z:FTERAE
and impairment (87,634) (7,577) (77,500) (6,679) (766) (2,414 (15,125) (197,695)
Net carrying amount EAFE 16,062 3,204 21,150 1,448 101 17 8,099 50,121
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment Continued) 13. W% ~ WE M&E @
Leasehold Fumniture Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total
HENE%E HEREE  BRR TARRE HAEEE e EHRE st
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn Tin TR TiEn TiEn T
31 March 2024 024%3A31A
At 1 April 2023: RO3E4R1E
Cost A 101,280 8,832 94,463 7,206 854 2,431 16,720 231,846
Accumulated depreciaton  Z3tHTE (56,509) (3,797) (54,916) (4,434 (580) 2,389) (8,159) (130,771)
Net carrying amount BmFE . 5,035 30547 2832 274 4 8,561 101,075
At 1 April 2023, net of ROVBE4AIR
acoumulated depreciaion  EAIRZEHE T 503 39547 2,832 274 49 8561 101,075
Addtions AE 10,036 1,991 5132 5,172 13 - 5,778 28721
Impaiment (note 7) RENET) (728) (339) (208) 79 - - 78) (1,430)
Depreciation provided durng A E & &
the year (23,120) (1719 (11,955) (2,080) (103) (16) (3.384) (42,437)
Exchange realignment EifE - - - (123) - - (17 (140)
M 31 March 2024, netof  R2024E3831R
accumulated depreciation BB EITE
and impairment RiafE 30964 4,909 32,516 6,323 184 33 10,860 85,789
At 31 March 2024: ROUEIANA:
Cost A 11,312 10,823 99,33 12,888 867 2,431 241 260,127
Accumulated depreciation  ZFFTERHE
and impairment (80,348 (6914) (66,819 (6,56) (683) (2,398 (11,611) (174,338)
Net carrying amount BHTE 30964 4,909 32,516 6,323 184 33 10,860 85,789

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s management identified
certain medical aesthetic centres which continued to
underperform. The Group performed impairment assessment
of the relevant medical aesthetic centres, being the cash-
generating units to which the respective property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU Assets”)
belonged, and estimated their corresponding recoverable
amounts. Based on these estimates, impairment losses of
HK$1,430,000 and HK$1,170,000 (note 14(a)) were recognised
to write down the carrying amounts of these PP&E and ROU
Assets, respectively, based on the recoverable amount of a
cash-generating unit of HK$2,892,000 as at 31 March 2024.
The estimates of the recoverable amounts were based on value
in use calculations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 14.0%.
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BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

14. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
retail stores, office premises, car park spaces and warehouses
used in its operations. The leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 6 years. There are several lease contracts that
include variable lease payments, which are further discussed
below.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

14, FHE

REBEREEA
AEEREEMBNBEEXRPL T
EE -MAENE FEENEETA
HEEK -BHMEHIRNF1E6F -
TXE—Fdme s 2HENRD
HETHEARK -

(@ GEHARAE
ARENERELERAELSF
NEEAT

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$’000

FHER

At 1 April 2023 MR2023%F 4 H1H 109,304
Additions NE 25,850

Depreciation charge during the year FAWEER (50,807)

Impairment (note 7) WA (FFE7) (1,170)

Exchange realignment & H (70)
At 31 March 2024 and at 1 April 2024 R2024F3 A31 B kR2024F 4 81H 83,107
Additions NE 3,031
Remeasurement on lease modifications ~ FAEE T EHTE 35,430

Depreciation charge during the year FAMEER (43,027)
At 31 March 2025 202593 A31H 78,541
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14. Leases (Continued) 14. ME ®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEARAEBEAE)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the HEBEREABERFAZEHNT :

movements during the year are as follows:

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At beginning of year RF ) 87,239 111,106
New leases NHE 3,031 24,108
Remeasurement on lease modifications T EE TR E#F =t & 35,430 -
Accretion of interest recognised FRNRERFEIE N
during the year 4,775 4,144
Payments during the year FARK (47,563) (52,085)
Exchange realignment ME 3 - (54)
At end of year RER 82,912 87,239
Analysed into: akiIv=1
Due within one year —FNEIH 36,856 35,731
Due in the second year # - F R 30,381 25,387
Due in the third to fifth years, inclusive $E=ZREZ|H (BIFERME) 15,675 26,121
Total Et 82,912 87,239
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEE &R D TR B 1wk
35 to the financial statements. 35 AEE -
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14. Leases (Continued)

14, HE #)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEARAEBEAE)
(¢) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () RERTHRAEEEEHENESE
leases are as follows: mr
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEREFNE 4,775 4,144
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 43,027 50,807
Expense relating to short-term leases KEHEEMEERY
(included in property rentals and (FFAmERS R
related expenses) HERX) 963 4,330
Variable lease payments not included in -~ Fef AR EBEFE 2 JERENTK
the measurement of lease liabilities GPNES 3R
(included in property rentals and
related expenses) 40 1,991
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEREA - 1,170
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B R HER A% 48,805 62,442
(d) The Group leased a medical aesthetic centre and certain (d AEEHE—EAES2XAPLE
retail stores which contain variable lease payment terms ETEEE - EFRErgiE
that are based on a certain percentage of the revenue of HRGEF ERNRDIRERE
the operations being undertaken therein pursuant to the A K ET R R E R R AR - R PT
terms and conditions as stipulated in the lease contracts. EEBHNEE TE LFE-
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements ZEHENEREREFEELAES
for these leases. 2 o
(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29(c) ) HERGRLBINYBHHRERNW

to the financial statements.

5 29(c) W FE ©
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15. Goodwill 15. &
HK$'000
FHTT
At 1 April 2023, at 31 March 2024, at 1 April 2024 R2023F 4 A1 H ~ K2024F3A31H -
and at 31 March 2025: M2024F4 A1H K
202543 A31H :
Cost %N 4,305
Accumulated impairment R2FHRE (4,305)
Net carrying amount BREDFE -
Impairment testing of goodwill (SRR AR S
Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through a business ¥ A PSR 24,305,000 0 E D
combination had been allocated to a non-surgical medical EEFMEEEEARBECELS
aesthetic service cash-generating unit for impairment testing SLAETRERS - WRBEFERE
and was fully impaired in prior years. A °
16. Inventories 16. 7 &
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Skincare products EEESR 27,070 31,862
Consumables and other supplies VB AR om N2 H At FE o 8,420 10,289
Total HEt 35,490 42,151
17. Trade Receivables 17. B 5 ERERFK
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Trade receivables E ZREBRR 3,953 13,522
Impairment VERED (65) (120)
Net carrying amount BRESE 3,888 13,402
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) B 5 RWERR ()
The Group’s trading terms with its individual customers are $’§ [ g H {8 Rl % P E’J GIEREER
mainly on cash and/or credit card settlement while the trading Rek SEAFREE MEEGER

terms with its corporate customers are on credit. The credit
period is generally 2 to 30 days for credit card settlement
from the respective financial institutions and up to 60 days
for corporate customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

PR %ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%# B & ph Ak
BUGEAFREENEES R A2E30
H MECEEFHEEN&EZ R60
o ANER B B R AR BE AR AR R HR A FE Uk
R UEEREEERR - sRhERE
ErHEMafES ASETERE
BIRNERERFAEEMERRSIE
fbfE AR - B S EUERFK TR B ©

RBERKR BHRRERREZEH
&%&WDE@EEE%%# L BRER AT AT -

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBT FET

Within 1 month 1@ AR 3,141 5,800
1 to 3 months 1 &3 A 287 5,856
Over 3 months BB 31E A 460 1,746
Total HRET 3,888 13,402

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

I RISRFURERBRBEFNESNT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

At beginning of year REA] 120 597
Reversal of impairment losses, net (note 7) 5 (B &5 18 % 0% 48 (£ 7) (55) @a77)
At end of year RER 65 120
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. B EIWEERK (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year
and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2025

REHRE AR R B REEEETRE
DI UEFEREEEEER - BEXTD
ERpEARUBREANZETED
BETOEMBIN B EGHE - %t E
RERSHAXMELER  BEERFEENR
SEMASHERBBESM - EAGRN
RARREBEE TR AR R A HT
Bl —RME - WMEZERKEREDR
BB —F BT UAMEE - BT RGIH
TTREMRR

TREIIRAEEE 5 U RN E
BREENEERRNEF

R202563HA31H

Past due
1to3 Over
Current months 3 months Total
B 123f8A HB3@EA @t
ECL rate BHEEEBEX 0.58% 2.43% 6.82% 1.64%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) HREAE (TET) 3,105 247 601 3,953
ECLs (HK$'000) HHEEER
(F&T) 18 6 41 65
As at 31 March 2024 7202453831 H
Past due
1t03 Over
Current months 3 months Total
B[ ER 1237  @B3EA st
ECL rate HHEEEBREX 0.45% 0.66% 3.27% 0.89%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) wEmE(TAET) 7,930 3,789 1,803 13,522
ECLs (HK$'000) BHEEEE
(F#&T) 36 25 59 120
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18. Prepayments, Deposits, Other Receivables and 18, JA#KIE « & & -« Efth fEULER
Other Assets AR EAMEE
2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
[{hg=3 FET FHET
Prepayments e 5K 6,760 7,832
Contract costs BRI (@) 6,358 5,048
Deposits e 22,983 35,162
Deposits paid for purchases EEWE  BENMEEER
of items of property, plant MEIZS
and equipment 177 101
Other receivables H 4 fE Y BR FR 3,372 2,687
Right-of-return assets REREE 654 -
40,304 50,830
Impairment VERED (316) -
Total WBEt 39,988 50,830
Analysed into: Pakiv=1
Non-current portion ERBE D 12,814 9,559
Current portion TRENER 27,174 41,271
Total BEt 39,988 50,830
Note: B 7
(@) Contract costs (@) AHRAK

The contract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and bonuses
paid or payable to doctors and staff, that are recognised as contract
costs in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the contract liabilities to
which they relate are recognised as revenue.

Management expects that incremental costs paid to doctors and staff
as a result of obtaining prepaid packages are recoverable. The Group
has therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of
HK$6,358,000 (2024: HK$5,048,000) at 31 March 2025.

Contract costs are amortised when the related revenue is recognised.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the amount of amortisation was
HK$14,757,000 (2024: HK$16,291,000) and no impairment loss on
contract costs was made.

TEHANBEFANBERLS (BHEEMRE
REMNREMELERETIMEL) ERNA
HRARGA B BARRAKRER BB LKA
ZERANEBENANARRRRKED
HAR MR R T AR

EEERE FAESEMNEREMXNE

REIMBERATRE - Bt - NEEH
72025F 3 A31 BB AR AE LKA
6,358,000/% 7T (2024 4 : 5,048,000 7T) 77

EREEK R AOKRAN G-
HEC0F3ASIALFE #iE2HA
14,757,000 7T (2024 4F : 16,291,000/ 7T)
I kA KPR SIS RE R -
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18. Prepayments, Deposits, Other Receivables and
Other Assets (Continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
deposits are as follows:

18.

BIE - fme - A EER
TN EMEE#)

REREBRRENZBMT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

At beginning of year REH] - -
Impairment loss (note 7) REEE (HE7) 316 -
At end of year RER 316 -

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default of counterparties. The
Group also takes into account the forward-looking information
to reflect the debtors’ probability of default under the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. As at 31 March 2025, the probability of default
applied was ranged from 0% to 100% (2024: 0%) and the loss

BESMREREBHET ZERS
HFEHMAIEM - REE NS E B
e &R URBREFAEENBERLT
Y38 %) 0] RE 1 K 3 AR 2R A AR L 0 8 R
(a0 A ) - 20253 A31H » FifEA
FE QOB RN F 0% E100% (ZZF =M
F:0%) @ MEHBKMEFTHT79% (2024

given default was estimated to be 79% (2024: 0%)

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time

F0%) o

19. RE MRS EZBEYWUARE K

Deposits FE BT R
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHER 56,842 63,819
Time deposits TEHFR 191,325 118,614
Subtotal N 248,167 182,433

Less: Pledged time deposits B R ERRRBRITEERE

for credit card and bank facilities (g gilzobral-iER=N (65,847) (62,604)
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEED 182,320 119,829

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$1,537,000 (2024: HK$17,713,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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19.

20.

21.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Tme  19. R & M BE & FEBW U KB K
Deposits (Continued) W R @)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITHRSEGARTERMEFENZ
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying )RR BREUF B o EHFR IR AEE
periods of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the BB SFRAAHIEAZE12EALN
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at AEEEEL - Wi & 8 € 817 31 &
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time BRERFI B o SR1TEBMEEBRTFRIIFA
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent MHEENCEREERIFHERIT
history of default.
Trade Payables 20. B ENER
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RmEBRR  BHENEFIZEZAH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AEMRR TN
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month 1@ AR 6,255 10,278
1 to 3 months 12318 A 40 234
Over 3 months B33 1E A 41 49
Total HEt 6,336 10,561
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have B SEMNRFKTAE  FHEEH—R
an average settlement term of 30 days. A30H o
Other Payables and Accruals 21, HWENBRRKEGTEH
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Other payables and accruals HMEMNERRRESER 18,286 29,455
Receipts in advance B U R IE 1,365 489
Refund liabilities RFEE 4,024 -
Total st 23,675 29,944

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have terms
ranging from 1 to 3 months.

HAENRRTEE - FHA1E3MEA -
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. B EMELE RS
2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M FExT FAT
Contract liabilities AHEE @) 129,342 131,320
Deferred revenue IR 7= 54,388 51,645
Total et 183,730 182,965
Note: MI5E

(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AHBEFBOT -
31 March 31 March 1 April
2025 2024 2023
2025 & 2024 & 2023 4
38310 38318 4A18
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET FHET

Advances received from customers B EF#

Treatment services BERERS 129,134 131,249 144,188
Sale of skincare products HEEEER 208 71 4
Total waEt 129,342 131,320 144,192
Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to render ERNEABERERREREREEXNESE
treatment services and deliver skincare products. The decrease in EE R i W ER 89 B F A 5K o 1A 2025 2 2024 F
contract liabilities in 2025 and 2024 was mainly due to the decrease in HENBEBERIETZEHRERERERER
advances received from customers in relation to the treatment services. BRFBRDIE - GHABNREEBERSE
The carrying amount of contract liabilities represented the amount of the EHHBRBHET (RBEARERBITRE
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations that DABIT) R ZERERE - BRERRE
are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as at the end of the reporting period. HENBEERERREH (—RNTEE
The contract liabilities in respect of the treatment services are expected EHEEFSEAZ18MEA) MiER A -
to be recognised as revenue within the service periods normally ranging EERR K REENTRE  BRER
from 3 months to 18 months from the date of purchase. In the opinion Al SR BB T REFNERE
of the directors, the actual outcome may be different from the amounts AER - URBITEERBEGIME

estimated and will be subject to the customers’ actual utilisation pattern
and prevailing laws and regulations, taking into account specific market
conditions.
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BHIBEREW s (&)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) BT« (48)
(@) (Continued) (@) (%)
The movements in contract liabilities are as follows: EREBENEFHNT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At beginning of year REY) 131,320 144,192
Receipts from sales of one-off treatments RE—REERERER
and treatment packages, net FTiS I8 F58 307,775 327,515
Revenue recognised upon the provision of REERRBE %D ERRE
treatment services (308,989) (340,110)
Revenue recognised upon the sale of HE#EBEEME S BRIE
skincare products (764) (277)
At end of year RER 129,342 131,320
23. Interest-bearing bank borrowings 23. FTEIRITER
2025 2024
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERFIE (%) El): TET AHME%) L FHT
Portions of bank loans due = Hong Kong 2025 5,850 HIBOR 2024-2025 6,660
for repayment within Interbank +2.5
one year or on demand Offered Rate
— unsecured (“HIBOR”)
+2.5
—FRIBERREKR EBBTRERE 20255 BEFTRERS 2024F-2025%
BENHHFTER (TBBRAT +2.5
- mE A%FE)+25
Portions of bank loans due =~ - - - HIBOR 2025 5,850
for repayment after +2.5
one year which contain
repayment on demand
clause (note)
— unsecured
—FRIBER(AE - - EBRITAERE 20255
REFERIER) 8 +2.5
BARTER (M)
— BIEH
Total 5,850 12,510
@t
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23.

24.

, , ) > S e
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (Continued) 23. ST RRITER @)
Note: B3
The term loans of the Group containing repayable on demand clauses as at 31 M 202543 A31H 7N £ & 8k [ 18 A 5,850,000 7
March 2025 with a carrying amount of HK$5,850,000 (2024: HK$12,510,000) JC (2024 4F : 12,510,000/ 70) MEHER (BEE
have been classified in total as current liabilities. Accordingly, portions of the EREEGR) AACHBEARDERE - At - »
bank loans due for repayment after one year as at 31 March 2024 with a carrying 2024% 3 A31H  #k ™ {& 45,850,000 ;L — F
amount of HK$5,850,000 had been classified as current liabilities. For the purpose BEEENRTERSIDENDEARBDERE - 5t
of the above analysis, the loans are included within current interest-bearing LlioiimE BEREGTARB BRITER D
bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable within one year or on MAR—FRNREREENRITER -
demand.
Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause and based on the maturity WRERERERERNZERREZEEHE
terms of these term loans, the Group’s bank borrowings are repayable: AR EREF - AERBE G SIRITERER AT
RIEE -
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 5,850 6,660
In the second year F_F - 5,850
Total “at 5,850 12,510
The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong NEBMRITERTABTIIE -
dollars.
' . 7 =
Provision for Reinstatement Costs 24, (BB A # e

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the
leased premises at which they are currently located back to
their original state of condition if and when the Group vacates
these leased premises.

EEXAEEREERRBYRERBRE
EMEREUREASEBHZEHEE
MEREEHRMENEENEER
AR AR AR B B B R EEE

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
At beginning of year RE 13,845 13,368
Additional provision REONE AR - 1,742
Amounts utilised during the year FRNEEARE (945) (1,265)
Reversal of unutilised amounts RE)AFIBRE D (944) -
At end of year RER 11,956 13,845
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24. Provision for Reinstatement Costs (Continued) 24, (B1ERK ANEEAE (1)
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Analysed into: Pakiiv=1

Non-current portion R D 11,056 8,800
Current portion mENE 900 5,045
Total BET 11,956 13,845

25.

Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

25. REFLIE
EEHEEAERGBRENNESHNT -

Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available
of related  for offsetting
depreciation  against future Lease
allowance taxable profits liabilities Others Total
TRFEH
BEMBAE  ARERH
RENTE  EANER HEAE Hitp B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TER TR TR THER
At 1 April 2023 20234 A1H 3,802 15,044 438 901 20,185
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ FREH A/ (B &) BEH

profit or loss during the year EERE (5 10)

(note 10) 2,515 (8,164) (287) (127) (1,063)
Exchange realignment L - - (17) - (17)
At 31 March 2024 and R2024F3A318 K

at 1 April 2024 20245418 6,317 11,880 134 74 19,105
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ £R: A/ (MK H) BEH

profit or loss during the year EREHIE (e 10)

(note 10) 1,440 (7,303) (134) 1,884 (4,113)
At 31 March 2025 M2025F3A31R 7,157 4,577 - 2,658 14,992
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

25. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

25. REFLIA (%)
EEBIEE &

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related  Right-of-use
depreciation assets Total
BHAETE
M ERE EREEE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
At 1 April 2023 R202354 A1H 5,223 464 5,687
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss ~ F Rt ABRMELFIE
during the year (note 10) (KF#E10) 278) (318) (596)
Exchange realignment MR - 17 17)
At 31 March 2024 and at 1 April 2024 120244 3 A 31 B &
20244 A1 H 4,945 129 5,074
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss ~ F R ABZ MR IE
during the year (note 10) (Kf#E10) (2,013) (129) (2,142)
At 31 March 2025 7202543 A31H 2,932 - 2,932
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25. Deferred Tax (Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

25. REFLIA (%)

RERE®R ETREHREERAR
ERNGEMBARREKEN - L TNR/AK

BB SRS B M ET R ER RS
RO

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE BN KR
the consolidated statement of BN IE A R
financial position 14,814 18,426
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ? G BRRKRIER
the consolidated statement of BRI R EF5
financial position (2,754) (4,395)
Net deferred tax assets BRI & EF R 12,060 14,031

At 31 March 2025, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$30,999,000 (2024: HK$27,842,000), subject to
the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department,
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also had estimated tax losses arising in Mainland
China of approximately HK$53,925,000 (2024: HK$54,478,000),
subject to the agreement by relevant tax authorities, that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
tax losses of HK$57,185,000 (2024: HK$25,372,000) due to
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

MN2025F3A31H  AEBRBEE
A T 78 85 18 30,999,000 78 7T (2024 4F
27,842,000 7T) - MEAFEBNERHE
B OAERHARANKEELEESREEDY
A A H) AR IR PE R B 4 ) o

REEBE IR B A E A AT IR IR A 1A
#4953,925,000 7 7T (2024 4F : 54,478,000
BT) AT AREERRERTEF -
RSB S AR ER T IEE
TR —Z2RFANEIH -

PP 2R 2R BR A R R 7 O A AT FRORI

oK it 4 7E 15 18 57,185,000 78 7T (2024
F 1 25,372,0007870) MERIRIEFIBEE -
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20.

27.

Share Capital 26. &
Shares &y
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 f% & &% H 1B
HK$0.01 each 0.01 B TH E@mA% 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHEE:
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 & &% &
HK$0.01 each 0.01 B TTHY B iR 4,000 4,000

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 27 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available
personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, the Company’s substantial
shareholders, and any consultants, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
and service providers of the Group. The Scheme was approved
and adopted on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company inissue as at 10 January 2017.
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BE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

27.

28.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
7 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and shall not exceed ten years from the date of offer
of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer; (i) the
average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not
have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options.
The Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the Scheme (2024: Nil).

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107 of
the financial statements.

27.

28.

HERR AT &l ()

WAE 1218 B ERRS 7 - 4R IR B AR AE AT 1)
ZHERABRBREBRTIRERG
BE  UARATREABEEETRS
1% BB IAE—FBEBBLR
5B ISR E R A S FHLE o

ARARRESE ETBITHRABHETER
RABFEMBEARLERE A
FTRBIIFRMITEFHLE - BLIN  ME
2@ A MEA - BT ARB T ERR
FBIFRTEFTHARFEABEALZ
ET R A A2 - (R B AR 1 B RME (AT B
BEEITIRM 20.1% R &E (RARAR
DRELABHZUMEFE) BEEE
BT AEERBRA® LBUSBIRH
/e ©

BB BOTREL R BT
BRER - REABLAARDETZ
SRS AR  o F7EE 1 A 2 77 (2 2 o
EEEE - R TABABRESL AN
CERSE

BREZITEEDHESET  ETF
PRUTESE : (AR FABRNRELN
HHATERS P H B R FTH 2 W&
(AR FARD N EEZL B BT A ER
S BEMZMERBERMIIZFHR
ME: Ri)ARRRELN B HRGRERGN
ZTHfE °

MERSEEERNTR -AKEBEY
BURSEEZFBRENEN - X%
B EARIIEREEE S -

BRER B ANERKEUR S HERRK

gLRE-

FR - ARBLERIFEZERATAAE
B2 EER N 8ERE (2024 F ¢
&) o

&t

74 55 [ A 5 3B 4F 1 B 6 3 B
KB BB B B 107 B MR A s
2H% 27 -
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BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows
(@) Major non-cash transactions
The Group entered into rental agreements in respect of its
medical aesthetic centres, retail stores, office premises, car
park spaces and warehouses. During the year, the Group
had the following major non-cash transactions:

(i) The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$3,031,000
(2024: HK$25,850,000) and HK$3,031,000 (2024:
HK$24,108,000), respectively, in respect of new
lease arrangements for leased properties.

(i) ~ The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$35,430,000 (2024
Nil) and HK$35,430,000 (2024: Nil), respectively, in
respect of lease modifications for leased properties.

@iy ~ Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the rental
agreements, the Group is required to restore the
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated
in the rental agreements. Accordingly, the Group
had also accrued and capitalised the estimated

29.

e eRERMF
(@ FEXFBEXRSH
rEBREEEXAHL TE
E-BAEME FESERERE
AIVHERZ AEBRFTFAN
FEFRERHWAT ¢
() AEERAEVENFHE
TR BEREEE KM

1%1%%3!55,%%/,1@3,031,ooo
7 7T (2024 4 : 25,850,000
#Jt) & 3,031,000% 7T
(2024 4F : 24,108,000787T) °

iy AEERAEVWENHEE
AR EEREEEREE
& {533/ € A & 35,430,000
BT (20244 8E) K
35,430,000/ JT (2024 4 :
;) o

(i) AR 4R 15 A IR R R IR
e AEEEKZEEED
XEEEHEBERENMNR
Ao E RBEFE K
SEITE R REAR{LAE

restoration cost of HK$1,742,000 in the prior year EAEBEERTENEBERK
when such obligations had arisen. K 1,742,000 7T ©
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) RETHELENABEEH
activities
2025 2025
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
TE|MITER HEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 1 April 2024 R2024F 4 A1 H 12,510 87,239
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREE @J (6,660) (42,788)
Interest paid classified as PEAKERSREN
operating cash flows BT FE - (4,775)
Non-cash changes: FReH @J
New leases Mg - 3,031
Remeasurement on lease HEETH
modifications EHEE - 35,430
Interest expense FERX - 4,775
At 31 March 2025 R20259F3 A31H 5,850 82,912
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 29. ire e mERMT @
Flows (Continuead)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REIHELENEELE (&)
activities (Continued)

2024 2024 F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FTERITRER HEARE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT T
At 1 April 2023 R2023F 4 A1H 19,170 111,106
Changes from financing cash flows BRERSREE (6,660) (47,921)
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKEREREN
cash flows BATHE - (4,144)
Non-cash changes: FRSEH -
New leases FHE - 24,108
Interest expense FERX - 4,144
Foreign exchange movement [E 5 % - (54)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3 531 H 12,510 87,239
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERLARE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement FFARSRERMNAERS KD
of cash flows is as follows: BEENT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within operating activities LEEENA 5,778 10,465
Within financing activities BB EE A 42,788 47,921
Total HEt 48,566 58,386
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B ZE 20253 31 HILFE

30. Pledge of Assets 30. EEHKM
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s credit HEeRMEERTASENEARRRT
card and bank facilities granted by financial institutions are FEEREEHASEEEFERT  AH
included in note 19 to the financial statements. FFEHN MG MRMET19 -
31. Commitment 31. H&JE
The Group had the following contractual commitment at the REBRBERREUATHE LRE
end of the reporting period:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FAEL
Computer equipment BIEE 31 230
32. Related Party Transactions 32. BERR5

(a) In addition to the balances, arrangements and
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

(@) BRZEFHHH/EREMEDMAFL
MR TR HI AEHE
RERNE—ZRETBEUNTERXR

transaction with a related party during the year: R
2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B E THET FHETT
A related company: —ME QA 0]
Endorsement fee KEE - 2,800

(i) The fee was paid for endorsement-related services provided by
a related company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company and was charged based on mutually agreed terms and
conditions.

178  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025

) ZERTDRA AR — L ERBE R
EHM—FEERARMEHROKE
BRARB M - WAREAAE 1 5E M5
R A YR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 32. BEARG #)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) AEEXTEEBAENTFS

of the Group

Details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group, including directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration, are disclosed in note 8 to the
financial statements.

AEBTEEBRABNFSFHB
(BREERTIEZTHRABHH)
R BRER M TS W EE

33. Financial Instruments by Category 33. kEEE TSI A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RRERRSESRTANKRMENT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets ERMEE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHE T
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHER AT ENEMEE
Trade receivables B 5 e W ER R 3,888 13,402
Financial assets included in FTATENFRIE e -
prepayments, deposits, other HMEWERR R EMEE
receivables and other assets NEemEE 26,039 37,849
Pledged time deposits B E BTN 65,847 62,604
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRRESEED 182,320 119,829
Total @t 278,094 233,684
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33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)

Financial liabilities

33.

HEEE e T E ®)
eHEes

2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEKAFTENERAE

Trade payables B SRR 6,336 10,561

Financial liabilities included in other FFAEMEN R IESTEA
payables and accruals NERBaE 9,075 15,897
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITRER 5,850 12,510
Lease liabilities HEAR 82,912 87,239
Total HET 104,173 126,207

34. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables,
the current portion of financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and other assets, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits, other receivables and other
assets has been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In the opinion
of the directors, the fair values approximate to their carrying
amounts.
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents, pledged time deposits and interest-
bearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and other assets, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate
risk. The Group mitigates this risk by closely monitoring the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its available credit
facilities and their utilisation regularly.

At the end of the reporting period, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/lower, which was
considered reasonably possible by management, with all other
variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year would
have been decreased/increased by HK$15,000 (2024: loss
before tax for the year would have been increased/decreased
by HK$31,000) as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on
bank borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group mainly transacts with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

35.

TRLE R EIE B IR RBUR

AEBFEcMIABERekE S
FEY  BEERTERFEREFTBRTHE
R ZEEBMTANTIEANER/AE
EuEEREES AREEZHEAM
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AFARBEMNERREFERNESREA
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TERERRAZEES -

AEESRIANEIERRAFER
B EERREABESRR EFE
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R ER
AEEEEHN TSN EE SRR T E R
A& BZFE MR EME BIRITER
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MmATE LM BB TE  AFART
AT %8 A1 #5980 38 41 15,000 7 7T (2024
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 March 2025

FERR (&)

BRRBRFELERE (&)
R20259F3 A31H

35. oA EIRE B ENEE @)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 BB
FEER 2HENGEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—IEE F-BE E=RER k(473 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TER TERT THERT
Trade receivables* B S RYERR - - - 3,953 3,953
Financial assets included in STABRFIE
prepayments, deposits, Be - HMEl
other receivables and ERRHEMEE
other assets HeREE
— Normal*™* —EE™ 25,955 - - - 25,955
— Doubtful** — FR" - - 400 - 400
Pledged time deposits BIRBTE TR
— Not yet past due — AR 65,847 - - - 65,847
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY
— Not yet past due — R 182,320 - - - 182,320
Total FE 274,122 - 400 3,953 278,475
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 March 2024

35. oA EIE B EREE @)

FERR (&)

BRRBRFELERE (&)
MR20249F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 72 HA
FEEAR P HEHEEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-HER ERE BT 9z Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET FET
Trade receivables® B 5 EARR - - - 13,522 13,522
Financial assets included in BUNEECR
prepayments, deposits, Be - HfEl
other receivables and RRREMEE
other assets MemEE
— Normal*™ —EE™ 37,849 - - 37,849
Pledged time deposits BERATHEK
— Not yet past due — AR 62,604 - - 62,604
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY
— Not yet past due — MR 119,829 - - - 119,829
Total @t 220,282 - - 13,522 233,804

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

7 5 ) 0 1 R AL 0 R 59 R MO
M - AR B B EE ) B R B 75 8
M7 B -

SPATENRIA - B - AR R B Al
BEMNSRE ERN RS SR &I E MR
HAvL R ARNERRRA KEEM -
BIZESREENERAZWRAIER]
B ZECREENCGEERRRARIT
B o

BERAASERE S EEFBRELNEER
2B 0 — B BUR N B SRR MY E
173K 5R ©
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. T EtR e E IR HERBK @)
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE(£)
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HARASEERERITREERTNE
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. —HETRS  HWBAEKER - EES
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ HREBIERER HFHEITERE - NR
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had HHR BREASEE S EURRES
certain concentrations of credit risk as 39% (2024: 38%) and #139% (2024 4F : 38%) K& 72% (2024 :
72% (2024: 71%) of the Group’s gross trade receivables were 71%) 5 Al BEW A & B & KEB AR
due from the Group’s largest debtor and five largest debtors, AREBANRIA  WASEEETE
respectively. BEEFRRR -
Liquidity risk REE LR
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and BEEBLREESREM  ANEFEEPERF
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed HEERRAAZERNE SRR SEED
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations IKE - LAREERNSEREES I E
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group KESRENSHTE AEEBFTHE
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has EEFTEESARNAERE T W
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations. BRBITHMBEET -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RIPEEAR  AEEBERIETLHRITIR
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual NS RaEMREBERMT -

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2025 2025 F
On demand/
less than 1to5
1 year years Total
BRER/
SR—F —-ZHE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET THER
Trade payables 2 IR ER 6,336 - 6,336
Financial liabilities included in S AE T BR AR
other payables and accruals EHERMSHEE 9,075 - 9,075
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note) sHESRITER () 5,850 - 5,850
Lease liabilities HERRE 40,589 48,324 88,913
Total @t 61,850 48,324 110,174
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

& ph R R E IR B AE MUK ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER(E)
2024 2024 F
On demand/
less than 1t05
1 year years Total
RER/
DR—F —ERF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHL FHL
Trade payables EC Il 10,561 - 10,561
Financial liabilities included in AT AE A B 1 BR B
other payables and accruals EAERAMSREE 15,897 - 15,897
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note) FRSRITER () 12,510 - 12,510
Lease liabilities HEaE 38,582 53,737 92,319
Total Bt 77,550 53,737 131,287
Note: Mzt -

Included in the above interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2025 are term loans with a carrying amount of HK$5,850,000 (2024:
HK$12,510,000). The loan agreements contain a repayment on demand
clause giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time
and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount is
classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that the loans will
be called in their entirety within 12 months from the end of the reporting period,
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity
dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain repayment on demand
clauses, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

LR 20254 3 A31 B ARNEEE BRITIERE
5 BRI {8 /4 5,850,000 78 7T (2024 4F - 12,510,000,%
TR TEHER - ERMEHEREREEBKK
ﬁﬂ?‘”fﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ#%*‘ﬂi’éﬂTEI BEF Bt 5t
WMEHERME  REIFEAMKEX] -

BEE LA EERREFBTENMESNK

RAREAARERZHEE ARERRER
BRBERGETRDN P AEE - LT HEERE
AT EBEREL : REBRIBREIER G0
BARR WEENEMN  RARBECREELAE
SERITRE MR

BRESZREBREZEGEROETER  ZFEFTR
BEHRNDHABE R BEAORITRN KR T
RAEEERERGROZE) AT

Within 1 year 1to 5 years Total

—FR —EhF aEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET FET

As at 31 March 2025 K20259F 3 A31H 5,992 - 5,992
As at 31 March 2024 MR2024F3A31H 7,256 6,018 13,274

2025 3k / SHHEREEER AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BZE2025F 3 A31 HIEFE

35.

306.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. eElERERBERBEKR @)
Policies (Continued)
Capital management BERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are AEBEAEERNTEZEEARELRSE
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern ERELCENENTERFEBROERL
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its U RBHERRAESANREE
business and maximise shareholders’ value. B -
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBRBLER LS RABEEERN
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and BREEEERFARLERNER - B
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or B ABRENERE  AEEERERRK
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend REMHREE  MBERZ A E AR R
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue RETTHTAR D o B Z= 202543 A 31 H
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies N2024F3A31BILFE EAETEN
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 BiE BRORBEWmES -
March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’ AEBEXRDEREERFIBHEKTD
equity.
Statement of Financial Position of the Company  36. ANA &) 7 B f& Ak &
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRR MERAROTBARAKER I
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHE AR ZRE - -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H b e AR X 115 241
Due from subsidiaries JIE Us B BB R B 318 55,045 65,045
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEY 45,799 35,682
Total current assets MEEEHRE 100,959 100,868
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Due to subsidiaries FERTBE & FIFRIE 35,101 35,975
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 65,858 64,893
Net assets EEFE 65,858 64,893
EQUITY e
Issued capital BT A 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) it () 61,858 60,893
Total equity HEmBE 65,858 64,893
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

37.

36. NRARIZHBEARNE (&)

(Continued)
Note: B3
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIEEOBRENT -
Share
premium Accumulated
account losses Total
B R ER -0 | st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2023 7H2023F 4 818 67,788 (7,861) 59,927
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year  4F J& i F }% 4 T Ui 5 4258 - 966 966
At 31 March 2024 and at 1 April 2024 H2024F 3318 K
20244 4 A1 A 67,788 (6,895) 60,893
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F & i 7 } % T U 5 4258 - 965 965
At 31 March 2025 R 202543 831 B 67,788 (5,930) 61,858

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2025.

37. HEF KK

RO N2025F6 A5 HKEESE

SHE R ETIE -

2025 3k / SHHEREEER AT
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEUBERHE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIBLEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FET FHETT FHETT FHETT

RESULTS ES

Revenue Wz 403,152 494,260 463,117 363,915 128,871

Profit/(loss) before tax BRE AR (BER) 23,017 (11,780) (23,867) 31,201 (16,217)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fi5Fi#E %, (FIx%) (12,427) (836) 3,366 (5,819) 3,564
Profit/(loss) for the year FEmEF(E18) 10,590 (12,616)  (20,501) 25,382 (12,653)

As at 31 March
M3A31H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000  HK$'000
TR FET FHET FHETT TFHETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Total assets BEE 471,282 479,443 516,811 476,814 372,135
Total liabilities waE (323,720) (342,680) (366,098) (305,544)  (226,561)

Equity attributable to owners ZAN2A &1 A A 15
of the Company %%

W
B

147,562 136,763 150,713 171,270 145,574

188  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2025



Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
EMEREBEEER A T




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層之履歷詳情
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	封底



